5.7

AUDIT, FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE

REPORT 21-010
9:30 a.m.
June 17, 2021
Council Chambers
Hamilton City Hall

Present: Councillors L. Ferguson (Chair), B. Clark, C. Collins, B. Johnson, M.
Pearson, A. VanderBeek, and M. Wilson

THE AUDIT, FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE PRESENTS REPORT 21-
010 AND RESPECTFULLY RECOMMENDS:

1. Professional and Consultant Services Roster 2019-2020 (PW21037 /
PED21133/ FCS21062) (City Wide) (Item 7.3)

That Report PW21037 / PED21133 / FCS21062, respecting the Professional and
Consultant Services Roster 2019-2020, be received.

2. Human Resource Dashboards (HUR21006) (City Wide) (Item 8.1)

That Report HUR21006, respecting Human Resource Dashboards (City Wide),
be received.

3. Hamilton Street Railway Pension Plan Text Amendment (FCS21051) (City
Wide) (Item 10.1)

That the Treasurer be authorized and directed to file the amendment to Section
8.01 to the Hamilton Street Railway (HSR) Pension Plan, per Appendix ‘A’ to
Report FCS21051 with the applicable government agencies.

4. Hamilton Wentworth Retirement Fund (HWRF) Plan Text Amendment
(FCS21052) (City Wide) (Item 10.2)

That the Treasurer be authorized and directed to file the amendment to Section
4.01 to the Hamilton Wentworth Retirement Fund (HWRF), per Appendix ‘A’ to
Report FCS21052 with the applicable government agencies.

5. 2020 City of Hamilton Financial Report and Audited Financial Statements
(FCS21037) (City Wide) (Item 10.3)

That the 2020 City of Hamilton Financial Report and Audited Financial
Statements, attached as Appendix “A” to Audit, Finance & Administration Report
121-010, be approved.
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6.

Halton Water Supply Amending Agreement (FCS21049) (City Wide) (Iltem
10.4)

(@) That the Water Supply Agreement between The Regional Municipality of
Halton and the City of Hamilton dated November 17, 2011 be amended as
attached in Appendix “A” to Report FCS21049; and,

(b) That the Mayor and City Clerk be authorized and directed to execute, on
behalf of the City of Hamilton, all necessary documentation to implement
Recommendation (a), all with content acceptable to the General Manager
of Finance and Corporate Services and General Manager of Public Works
and in a form satisfactory to the City Solicitor.

80 Brockley Drive, Hamilton — Water and Wastewater / Storm Charges
Deferred Payment Arrangement (FCS21059) (Ward 5) (Item 10.5)

That the General Manager, Finance and Corporate Services, be authorized to
enter into a deferred payment arrangement with a 12-month repayment period
commencing in June 2021, pertaining to water and wastewater / storm charges
for a total amount of $298,985.59 regarding Alectra Utilities (Alectra) account
number 5180581300 and service address of 80 Brockley Drive, Hamilton.

Development Charges Reserves Status Report as of December 31, 2020
(FCS21047) (City Wide) (Item 10.6)

(@) That Report FCS21047 “Development Charges Reserves Status Report
as of December 31, 2020” be received and made available to the public;

(b)  That Report FCS21047 “Development Charges Reserves Status Report
as of December 31, 2020” be forwarded, if requested, to the Ministry of
Municipal Affairs and Housing.

Correspondence from the Municipality of Tweed Requesting Support for
their Resolution Advocating for the Reform of Joint and Several Liability
(LS21019) (City Wide) (Outstanding Business List Item) (Item 10.7)

That the Mayor submit, on behalf of City Council, a letter substantially similar to
the draft attached as Appendix C to the Ministry of the Attorney General,
expressing support for the Municipality of Tweed’s recent correspondence to
Premier Ford regarding joint and several liability reform, and requesting an
update with respect to the Ministry’s 2019 consultations with municipalities on the
subject.
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10. Grants Sub-Committee Report 21-001 - June 8, 2021 (Item 10.8)

(@)

(b)

2021 City Enrichment Funding Recommendations (GRA21002) (City
Wide) (Item 5.1)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

That Appendix “A” attached to Report GRA21002, City Enrichment
Fund 2021 Summary, be received;

That the 2021 City Enrichment Fund recommended funding
allocation, in the amount of $ $2,461,165 for Operating-based
grants, as outlined in Appendix “B” to Item 10 of Audit, Finance &
Administration Report 21-010, be approved;

That the City Enrichment Fund grants, listed in Appendix “C” to
Item 10 of Audit, Finance & Administration Report 21-010, be
conditionally approved with the funds to be released pending the
submission of the Program Status form and other additional
information by July 9, 2021;

That Appendix “D” to Item 10 of Audit, Finance & Administration
Report 21-010, City Enrichment Fund Payment Plan, be approved;
and,

That Appendix “E” attached to Report GRA21002, Application
Summary, be received.

2020 City Enrichment Funding Recommendations (GRA20003(d))
(City Wide) (Item 6.2)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

That 2020 grant recipients, in the Creation and Presentation
stream, be given a project deadline extension until November 1,
2021, pending the receipt of a written request for said extension by
the recipient to the Arts Program Manager, to be received by June
30, 2021,

That any 2020 grant recipients, in the Creation and Presentation
stream, who have withdrawn approved applications and returned
surplus funds to the City of Hamilton be eligible to reactivate their
project and be given a project deadline extension until November 1,
2021, pending the receipt of a written request for said extension by
the recipient to the Arts Program Manager, to be received by June
30, 2021,

That 2020 grant recipients, in the Arts and Communities Culture
and Heritage Capacity Building (CCH) streams, be given a project
deadline extension until November 1, 2021 pending the receipt of a
written request for said extension by the recipient to the Arts
Program Manager, to be received by June 30, 2021; and,
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(iv)  That Appendix “A” to attached to Report GRA20003(d), 2020 City
Enrichment Fund Recipients Owing Funds to the City of Hamilton
be, received.

11. Appointments to the Immigrant and Refugee Advisory Committee for the
Remainder of the 2018 - 2022 Term (Item 14.1)

That the appointments to the Immigrant and Refugee Advisory Committee, for
the remainder of the 2018 — 2022 term of Council, be approved and released
publicly following approval by Council.

12.  City Auditor Reporting of Serious Matters to Council (Case #37265)
(AUD21005) (City Wide) (Item 14.2)

That Report AUD21005, respecting the City Auditor Reporting of Serious Matters
to Council (Case #37265), be received and remain confidential.

FOR INFORMATION:
(8 CHANGES TO THE AGENDA (Item 2)

The Committee Clerk advised that there were no changes to the agenda.

The agenda for the June 17, 2021 Audit, Finance and Administration Committee
meeting was approved, as presented.

(b) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Item 3)

There were no declarations of interest.
(c) APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Item 4)
(1) June 3, 2021 (Item 4.1)

The Minutes of the June 3, 2021 meeting of the Audit, Finance and
Administration Committee were approved, as presented.

(d)  CONSENT ITEMS (Item 7)
The following Consent Items (Item 7), were received:

0] Interview Sub-Committee to the Audit, Finance and Administration
Committee Minutes (Item 7.1):

Q) May 10, 2021 (Item 7.1(a))
(2) May 25, 2021 (Item 7.1(b))
3) June 7, 2021 (Item 7.1(c))

Council — June 23, 2021
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(e)

(f)

(ii)

Various Advisory Committee Minutes (Item 7.2):
Q) Aboriginal Advisory Committee - February 4, 2021 (Item 7.2(a))
(2) Aboriginal Advisory Committee - March 4, 2021 (Iltem 7.2(b))

3) Hamilton Mundialization Advisory Committee - April 21, 2021 (ltem
7.2(c))

4) Status of Women Advisory Committee - April 22, 2021 (Item 7.2(d))

STAFF PRESENTATIONS (Item 8)

(i)

Human Resource Dashboards (HUR21006) (City Wide) (Item 8.1)

Lora Fontana, Executive Director of Human Resources, and Nenzi Cocca,
Director of Human Resource Systems and Operations, provided the
Committee with a staff presentation respecting Human Resource
Dashboards.

The Staff Presentation respecting Report HUR21006, Human Resource
Dashboards, was received.

For further disposition of this matter, please refer to Item 2.

GENERAL INFORMATION / OTHER BUSINESS (Iltem 13)

(i)

Amendment to the Outstanding Business List (Item 13.1)

The following amendments to the Audit, Finance & Administration
Committee’s Outstanding Business List, were approved:

€) Items Considered Complete and Needing to be Removed:

Correspondence from the Municipality of Tweed requesting support
for their resolution advocating for the reform of joint and several
liability.

Hamilton City Council received the correspondence and referred it
to Legal and Risk Management Services for review and report back
to the Audit, Finance and Administration Committee.

Added: March 31, 2021 at Council - Item 4.21

Competed: June 17, 2021 at AF&A - Item 10.7

OBL Item: 21-E

Council — June 23, 2021
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(9)

(h)

PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL (Item 14)

Committee determined that discussion of Iltem 14.1 was not required in Closed
Session, so the item was addressed in Open Session, as follows:

() Appointments to the Immigrant and Refugee Advisory Committee for
the Remainder of the 2018 - 2022 Term (Item 14.1)

For disposition of this matter, please refer to Item 11.

Committee moved into Closed Session respecting Item 14.2, pursuant to Section
9.1, Sub-sections (b) and (d) of the City's Procedural By-law 21-021, and Section
239(2), Sub-sections (b) and (d) of the Ontario Municipal Act, 2001, as amended,
as the subject matter pertains to personal matters about an identifiable individual,
including municipal or local board employees; and labour relations or employee
negotiations.

(i) City Auditor Reporting of Serious Matters to Council (Case #37265)
(AUD21005) (City Wide) (Item 14.2)

For disposition of this matter, please refer to Item 12.

ADJOURNMENT (Item 15)

There being no further business, the Audit, Finance and Administration
Committee, adjourned at 10:13 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Councillor Ferguson, Chair
Audit, Finance and Administration
Committee

Angela McRae
Legislative Coordinator
Office of the City Clerk
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2020 City of Hamilton Five Year Financial and Statistical Review Section 1
2020 City of Hamilton Consolidated Financial Statements Section 2
2020 Consolidated Financial Statements for the City Trust Funds
(Cemetery and General Trusts) Section 3
2020 Financial Statements for the Trust Funds for the Homes for the Aged Section 4

Accommodations for Readers with Disabilities

In accordance with the Ontario Human Rights Code, Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2001
(ODA) and Accessibility for Ontarians with Disabilities Act, 2005 (AODA), the City of Hamilton
will accommodate for readers with a disability upon request.
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City of Hamilton
Five Year Financial and Statistical Review (unaudited)
(Al amounts are reported in thousands of dollars except statistical information, ratios and per capita figures)
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

Operating Revenue
Taxation 957,739 917,126 888,229 876,880 854,709
Government grants and contributions 521,305 447,833 454,774 394,785 385,447
User charges 329,316 372,145 347,637 334,974 332,601
Development charges and subdivider contributions 33,693 60,646 119,703 50,313 82,025
Donated tangible capital assets 8,494 21,715 46,862 18,217 16,646
Investment and dividend income 33,545 37,598 31,101 28,070 27,067
Net income from Government Business Enterprises 10,726 11,262 24,285 134,914 22,857
Other 120,526 128,764 137,476 131,383 116,549

2,015,344 1,997,089 2,050,067 1,969,536 1,837,901
Operating Expenses by Function
General government 68,079 66,626 80,025 70,733 72,550
Protection services 341,243 330,258 324,227 312,564 306,629
Transportation services 322,651 337,719 320,005 326,274 310,190
Environmental services 251,828 252,778 284,271 239,488 238,553
Health services 126,930 106,057 102,868 99,125 98,443
Social and family services 333,523 309,361 316,819 315,218 302,830
Social housing 110,063 97,131 105,893 105,141 111,113
Recreation and cultural services 149,932 176,949 172,965 169,029 165,214
Planning and development 56,382 52,263 56,785 53,455 51,514

1,760,631 1,729,142 1,763,858 1,691,027 1,657,036
Net Operating Revenue
or Annual Surplus from Operations 254,713 267,947 286,209 278,509 180,865

Note: Amounts reported may have been restated from previous amounts presented to conform to 2020 Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) standards.
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City of Hamilton
Five Year Financial and Statistical Review (unaudited)
(Al amounts are reported in thousands of dollars except statistical information, ratios and per capita figures)
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Taxation
Taxation from real property 1,146,798 1,102,694 1,071,092 1,056,723 1,032,999
Taxation from other governments/payments in lieu of taxes $ 16,900 16,551 16,256 17,042 16,469
Taxation collected on behalf of school boards (205,959) (202,119) (199,119) (196,885) (194,759)
Net taxes available for municipal purposes 957,739 917,126 888,229 876,880 854,709
Tax Levies
City portion 924,159 886,787 857,981 845,392 827,668
School Board portion 202,808 198,980 196,082 193,714 191,734
1,126,967 1,085,767 1,054,063 1,039,106 1,019,402
Tax arrears
Taxes receivable 85,023 86,309 80,972 77,918 83,730
Taxes receivable per capita 147 149 145 140 155
Taxes receivable as a percentage of current years' levies 7.5% 7.9% 7.7% 7.5% 8.2%
Unweighted Taxable Assessment
Residential 70,762,154 66,000,132 61,518,082 57,306,633 53,366,322
Non-Residential 9,620,270 9,069,880 8,442,007 7,908,588 7,571,212
80,382,424 75,070,012 69,960,089 65,215,221 60,937,534
Weighted Taxable Assessment
Residential 73,713,509 69,119,831 64,745,624 61,208,842 57,357,959
Non-Residential 20,946,399 19,641,077 18,379,207 17,376,301 16,428,325
94,659,908 88,760,908 83,124,831 78,585,143 73,786,284
Residential vs Non-Residential Percentage
of Total Weighted Taxable Assessment
Residential 78% 78% 78% 78% 78%
Non-Residential 22% 22% 22% 22% 22%
Taxable Assessment Growth (weighted) 1.2% 1.2% 1.6% 1.4% 0.7%

Note: Amounts reported may have been restated from previous amounts presented to conform to 2020 Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) standards.
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City of Hamilton
Five Year Financial and Statistical Review (unaudited)
(Al amounts are reported in thousands of dollars except statistical information, ratios and per capita figures)
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Operating Expenses by Object
Salaries, wages and employee benefits $ 819,188 $ 797,631 $ 780,052 $ 755,403 $ 741,847
Interest on long term liabilities 12,416 13,767 12,677 13,442 12,934
Materials 203,045 203,308 207,682 218,037 221,520
Contracted services 282,168 309,634 341,931 275,361 276,159
Rents and financial expenses 36,080 31,084 34,550 42,421 34,297
External transfers 193,667 168,471 190,538 194,241 184,546
Amortization of tangible capital assets 214,067 205,247 196,428 192,122 185,733
1,760,631 1,729,142 1,763,858 1,691,027 1,657,036
Operating Expenses as Percentage of Total
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 46.5% 46.1% 44.2% 44.7% 44.8%
Interest on long term liabilities 0.7% 0.8% 0.7% 0.8% 0.8%
Materials 11.6% 11.8% 11.8% 12.9% 13.4%
Contracted services 16.0% 18.0% 19.5% 16.3% 16.7%
Rents and financial expenses 2.0% 1.8% 2.0% 2.5% 2.1%
External transfers 11.0% 9.7% 10.8% 11.5% 11.1%
Amortization of tangible capital assets 12.2% 11.8% 11.0% 11.3% 11.1%
100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Long Term Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities incurred by the City $ 436,289  $ 432,709 $ 484,891 $ 418,145  § 472,805
Long Term Debt incurred by the City for which other
entities have assumed responsibility

436,289 432,709 484,891 418,145 472,805

Long Term Liabilities

Housing operations $ 40,991 $ 46,967  $ 52,803 % 58,508 % 64,070

City operations 395,298 385,742 432,088 359,637 408,735
436,289 432,709 484,891 418,145 472,805

Long term liabilities as a % of Reserves and Capital

Surplus 49.80% 51.60% 57.30% 58.60% 62.20%

Note: Amounts reported may have been restated from previous amounts presented to conform to 2020 Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) standards.
1-3
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City of Hamilton
Five Year Financial and Statistical Review (unaudited)
(Al amounts are reported in thousands of dollars except statistical information, ratios and per capita figures)
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Tangible Capital Assets
General
Land $ 403,879 $ 387,321 $ 357,211 $ 333,818 $ 315,467
Land improvements 181,506 167,237 157,312 152,325 150,337
Buildings 829,290 815,472 817,598 756,160 761,396
Vehicles 138,937 148,259 137,501 128,600 133,786
Computer hardware and software 18,698 19,499 13,572 11,821 11,058
Other 92,062 93,335 95,871 99,540 103,490
Infrastructure
Roads 1,315,237 1,310,342 1,293,193 1,261,223 1,253,561
Bridges and structures 181,098 181,896 184,387 183,422 184,213
Water and wastewater facilities 416,470 395,495 398,743 403,647 396,884
Underground and other networks 2,021,641 1,986,865 1,861,011 1,789,334 1,761,542
Net Book Value 5,598,818 5,505,721 5,316,399 5,119,890 5,071,734
Assets under construction 604,146 425,067 360,182 309,974 199,680
6,202,964 5,930,788 5,676,581 5,429,864 5,271,414
Accumulated Surplus or Municipal Financial Position
Reserves and reserve funds
Reserves $ 623,966 $ 612,513 $ 660,380 $ 697,931 $ 647,278
Hamilton Future Fund 58,466 52,963 48,635 44,322 43,079
682,432 665,476 709,015 742,253 690,357
Capital surplus $ 193,769 $ 173,857 $ 136,894 $ (28,137) $ 70,021
Operating surplus 83,987 74,118 88,433 1,498 2,020
Investment in Government Business Enterprises 319,823 323,851 329,237 356,098 247,386
Investment in tangible capital assets 5,629,066 5,393,649 5,102,640 4,995,441 4,780,723
Unfunded liabilities - Employee future benefits (363,419) (348,328) (348,832) (343,679) (333,787)
Unfunded liabilities - Solid waste landfill sites (65,148) (71,420) (71,559) (24,174) (24,466)
Unfunded liabilities - Environmental (15,400) - - - -
6,465,110 6,211,203 5,236,813 5,699,300 4,741,897

Note: Amounts reported may have been restated from previous amounts presented to conform to 2020 Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) standards.
1-4
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City of Hamilton
Five Year Financial and Statistical Review (unaudited)
(Al amounts are reported in thousands of dollars except statistical information, ratios and per capita figures)

020 2019 2018 017 016
Statistical Information
Population 578,000 579,000 572,575 563,480 558,397
Households 237,420 237,200 234,655 227,641 222,918
Area in hectares 112,840 112,775 112,775 112,775 112,775
Building Permit Values $1,383,480,564 $1,408,521,764 $1,264,757,129 $1,364,145,419 $1,056,237,746
Housing Starts 1,406 1,438 1,135 1,340 1,436
Residential Units - Building Permits 4,507 5,012 5,808 6,053 5,835
Average Monthly Social Assistance Case Load 11,034 11,248 11,884 12,807 12,753
Continuous Full Time Employees 6,919 6,841 6,724 6,664 6,670

Note: Amounts reported may have been restated from previous amounts presented to conform to 2020 Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) standards.

1-5



Appendix "A" to Item 5 of AF&A Report 21-010
Page 10 of 71

Section 2

City of Hamilton
Consolidated Financial Statements
2020



Appendix "A" to Item 5 of AF&A Report 21-010
Page 11 of 71

Contents
Section - Page
Independent Auditors’ Report 2-1to 2-4
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 2-5
Consolidated Statement of Operations 2-6
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets 2-7
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow 2-8

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 2-9 to 2-43
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Independent Auditors’ Report

<<NOTE: The Independent Auditors’ Report will be inserted after the Financial Report is approved by the
Audit, Finance and Administration Committee. >>
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Independent Auditors’ Report

<<NOTE: The Independent Auditors’ Report will be inserted after the Financial Report is approved by the
Audit, Finance and Administration Committee. >>
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Independent Auditors’ Report

<<NOTE: The Independent Auditors’ Report will be inserted after the Financial Report is approved by the
Audit, Finance and Administration Committee. >>
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Independent Auditors’ Report

<<NOTE: The Independent Auditors’ Report will be inserted after the Financial Report is approved by the
Audit, Finance and Administration Committee. >>
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City of Hamilton

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
For the year ended December 31, 2020 (all numbers are in thousands of dollars)

2020 2019
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 3) $ 459,178 $ 187,704
Taxes receivable 85,023 86,309
Accounts receivable 139,157 131,232
Other assets 1,428 1,473
Long term receivables (Note 4) 42,237 47,379
Portfolio investments (Note 3) 1,022,899 1,069,908
Investment in Government Business Enterprises (Note 5) 319,823 323,851
Total financial assets $ 2,069,745 $ 1,847,856
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 390,003 $ 339,830
Deferred revenue - general 87,143 42,542
Deferred revenue - obligatory reserve funds (Note 6 & 7) 470,579 331,278
Long term liabilities — municipal operations (Note 8) 395,298 385,742
Long term liabilities — housing corporation (Note 9) 40,991 46,967
Employee future benefits and other obligations (Note 10 & 11) 387,950 372,695
Solid waste landfill liabilities (Note 12) 65,148 71,420
Total liabilities 1,837,112 1,590,474
Net financial assets $ 232,633 $ 257,382
Non-financial assets
Tangible capital assets (Note 21) $ 6,202,964 $ 5,930,788
Inventories 19,394 15,672
Prepaid expenses 10,119 7,361
Total non-financial assets 6,232,477 5,953,821
Accumulated surplus (Note 13) $ 6,465,110 $ 6,211,203

Contractual obligations (Note 17)
Contractual rights (Note 18)
Contingent liabilities (Note 20)

COVID-19 (Note 25)

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
2-5



Appendix "A" to Item 5 of AF&A Report 21-010
Page 17 of 71

City of Hamilton

Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the year ended December 31, 2020 (all numbers are in thousands of dollars)

Budget Actual Actual
2020 2020 2019
(Note 24)
Revenue
Taxation (Note 15) $ 953,883 $ 957,739 $ 917,126
Government grants and contributions (Note 16) 621,458 521,305 447,833
User charges, licences and fines 365,598 329,316 372,145
Developer contributions earned 35,463 33,693 60,646
Donated tangible capital assets 8,494 8,494 21,715
Investment and dividend income 33,730 33,545 37,598
Net income from Government
Business Enterprises (Note 5) - 10,726 11,262
Other 111,332 120,526 128,764
Total revenue 2,129,958 2,015,344 1,997,089
Expenses
General government $ 78,429 $ 68,079 $ 66,626
Protection services 343,042 341,243 330,258
Transportation services 359,977 322,651 337,719
Environmental services 250,886 251,828 252,778
Health services 118,240 126,930 106,057
Social and family services 337,009 333,523 309,361
Social housing 107,008 110,063 97,131
Recreation and cultural services 174,024 149,932 176,949
Planning and development 60,825 56,382 52,263
Total expenses 1,829,440 1,760,631 1,729,142
Annual Surplus $ 300,518 $ 254,713 $ 267,947
Accumulated surplus
Beginning of year $ 6,211,203 $ 6,211,203 $ 5,945,828
Other comprehensive loss and other
Government Business Enterprises (Note 5) - (806) (2,572)
End of year $ 6,511,721 $ 6,465,110 $ 6,211,203

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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City of Hamilton

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets
For the year ended December 31, 2020 (all numbers are in thousands of dollars)

Budget Actual Actual
2020 2020 2019
(Note 24)
Operating activities
Annual surplus $ 300,518 $ 254,713 $ 267,947
Other comprehensive loss of
Government Business Enterprises - (806) (2,572)
Acquisition of tangible capital assets (659,399) (487,876) (445,146)
Loss on disposition of tangible capital assets 10,127 10,127 7,407
Amortization of tangible capital assets 214,066 214,067 205,247
Donated tangible capital assets (8,494) (8,494) (21,715)
Change in inventories - (3,722) (498)
Change in prepaid expenses - (2,758) 1,064
Change in financial assets (143,182) (24,749) 11,734
Net financial assets
Beginning of year 257,382 257,382 245,648
End of year $ 114,200 $ 232,633 $ 257,382

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
2-7
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City of Hamilton
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2020 (all numbers in columns are in thousands of dollars)

Operating activities
Annual surplus

Increase in taxes receivable

Increase in accounts receivable

Increase in other assets

Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities
(Increase) decrease in deferred revenue - general
Increase in deferred revenue - obligatory reserve fund
Increase in inventories

Decrease in prepaid expenses

Non-cash activities
Amortization of tangible capital assets
Donated tangible capital assets
Loss on disposition of tangible capital assets
Net income from Government Business Enterprises
Change in employee future benefits and other obligations
Change in solid waste landfill liabilities

Investing activities
Increase in portfolio investments
Decrease in long term receivables
Dividends received from Government Business Enterprises
Issuance of share capital

Financing activities
Long term debt issued — municipal operations
Debt principal repayment — municipal operations
Lease obligation payment — municipal operations
Debt principal repayment — housing corporation

Capital activities
Purchase of tangible capital assets

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

Beginning of year

End of year

2020 2019
$ 254,713 $ 267,947
1,286 (5,337)
(7,925) (12,184)
45 (53)
50,173 16,308
44,601 (2,654)
139,301 94,223
(3,722) (498)
(2,758) 1,064
214,067 205,247
(8,494) (21,715)
10,127 7,407
(10,726) (11,262)
15,255 (482)
(6,272) (139)
689,671 537,872
47,009 (13,401)
5,142 16,194
51,934 14,076
(37,986) -
66,099 16,869
51,705 -
(41,530) (45,728)
(619) (619)
(5,976) (5,836)
3,580 (52,183)
(487,876) (445,146)
271,474 57,412
187,704 130,292
$ 459,178 $ 187,704

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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City of Hamilton

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020 (all numbers in columns are in thousands of dollars)

1. Significant accounting policies

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the City of Hamilton (“City”) are prepared by management in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, as recommended by the Public Sector
Accounting Board (“PSAB”) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

Significant accounting policies adopted by the City are as follows:

(a) Reporting entity

(i)

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses, changes in
accumulated surplus, changes in net financial assets of the reporting entity. The consolidated
financial statements include the activities of all committees of Council and the following boards and
enterprises which are under the control of and accountable to Council:

Hamilton Police Services Board

The Hamilton Public Library Board

The Hamilton Street Railway Company

CityHousing Hamilton Corporation

Hamilton Business Improvement Areas including Ancaster BIA, Barton Street Village BIA,
Concession Street BIA, Downtown Hamilton BIA, Dundas BIA, International Village BIA, Locke
Street BIA, Downtown Stoney Creek BIA, Ottawa Street BIA, Waterdown BIA, and Westdale BIA
Flamborough Recreation Sub-Committees

Confederation Park

Hamilton Farmers Market

Public Health and Housing Services Division (HSD) fully funded programs

Interdepartmental and organizational transactions and balances are eliminated.

CityHousing Hamilton Corporation was incorporated as Hamilton Housing Corporation on January
1, 2001 as a result of the provincial legislation, Social Housing Reform Act 2000, which transferred
the operation of various local housing authorities to municipalities. The City of Hamilton assumed
social housing responsibilities on December 1, 2001. The share capital of CityHousing Hamilton
Corporation is 100% owned by the City of Hamilton and a separate Board of Directors has been
established to provide oversight responsibilities for the Corporation.

CityHousing Hamilton Corporation has been consolidated on a line-by-line basis after conforming
with the City’s accounting principles after eliminating inter-organizational transactions and balances.

Hamilton Ultilities Corporation (“H.U.C.”), Hamilton Enterprises Holdings Corporation (“H.E.H.C.O.”)
and Hamilton Renewable Power Inc. (“H.R.P.l.”) are subsidiary corporations of the City and are
accounted for on a modified equity basis, consistent with the generally accepted accounting
treatment for government business enterprises (Note 5). Under the modified equity basis, the
business enterprise’s accounting principles are not adjusted to conform to those of the City and inter-
organizational transactions and balances are not eliminated.

City of Hamilton trust fund assets that are administered for the benefit of external parties are excluded
from the consolidated financial statements. Separate financial statements have been prepared.
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City of Hamilton

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020 (all numbers in columns are in thousands of dollars)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(a) Reporting entity (continued)

Cemetery trust, and general trust funds administered by the City amounting to $21,374,000 (2019 -
$20,060,000) have not been included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position nor have
these operations been included in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Homes for the Aged
trust funds administered by the City amounting to $413,000 (2019 - $404,000) have not been included
in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position nor have these operations been included in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations.

The financial activities of certain entities associated with the City of Hamilton are not consolidated.
The City’s contributions to these entities are recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.
The entities that are not consolidated are as follows:

Hamilton Region Conservation Authority

Disabled and Aged Regional Transit System

The Hamilton Municipal Retirement Fund

The Hamilton-Wentworth Retirement Fund

The Pension Fund of the Employees of the Hamilton Street Railway
Township of Glanbrook Non-Profit Housing Corporation

(i) The taxation, other revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities with respect to the operations of various

school boards are not reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

(b) Basis of accounting

Revenues are recorded on the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recognized as
they are earned and measurable. Expenses are recognized in the period goods and services are
acquired and a liability is incurred.

(c) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Significant estimates include assumptions used in estimating provisions for allowance for
doubtful accounts, donated tangible capital assets, solid waste landfill liabilities, liabilities for
contaminated sites, and in performing actuarial valuations of employee future benefit obligations.

Where estimation uncertainty exists, the financial statements have been prepared within reasonable
limits of materiality. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(d) Cash, cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cash held in financial institutions and temporary
investments with maturities of 365 days or less. Investments are valued at cost and are written down
when there is a decrease in value.

(e) Portfolio investments

Portfolio investments mainly comprise of federal, provincial and municipal government bonds and
deposit notes and short term instruments of financial institutions. Portfolio investments are valued at
cost less any amounts written off to reflect an other than temporary decline in value.
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City of Hamilton

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020 (all numbers in columns are in thousands of dollars)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(f) Portfolio investments

Portfolio investments mainly comprise of federal, provincial and municipal government bonds and
deposit notes and short term instruments of financial institutions. Portfolio investments are valued at
cost less any amounts written off to reflect an other than temporary decline in value.

(g) Deferred revenue — obligatory reserve funds

Receipts which are restricted by legislation of senior governments or by agreement with external
parties are in nature restricted revenues and are reported as deferred revenues. When qualifying
expenses are incurred, deferred revenues are recognized into revenue in the fiscal period they are
expended.

(h) Employee future benefits and other obligations

Employee future benefits and other obligations for retirement, post employment and pension benefits
are reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. The accrued benefit obligations
are determined using management’s best estimates of expected investment yields, wage and salary
escalation, mortality rates, termination and retirement ages. The actuarial gain or loss is amortized
over the expected average remaining life expectancy of the members of the employee groups.

(i) Tangible capital assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts directly attributable to
acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. Donated and/or contributed assets
are capitalized and recorded at their estimated fair value upon acquisition and recognized in revenue.
Leased tangible capital assets are valued at the present value of the future minimum lease payments.
Certain tangible capital assets for which historical cost information is not available have been
recorded at current replacement cost deflated by a relevant inflation factor.

Amortization for road linear assets is calculated on a consumption basis using road deterioration
curves. All other tangible capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. One half of the annual amortization is recorded as amortization expense in the year of
acquisition or construction and in the year of disposal. Estimated useful lives range from 2 years to
100 years as follows:

General - Land improvements 20 to 75 years
General - Buildings 20 to 50 years
General - Vehicles 3 to 20 years
General — Computer hardware and software 3 to 5 years
General — Other — Machinery and equipment 210 100 years
Infrastructure — Bridges and other structures 40 to 75 years
Infrastructure — Water and wastewater facilities 20 to 40 years
Infrastructure — Water, wastewater, storm and road linear 18 to 100 years

The City has leased tangible capital assets which are amortized over the term of the lease, ranging
from 5 to 50 years. The cost, accumulated amortization, net book value and amortization expense
have been reported in these consolidated financial statements.

Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is ready for use. All interest on debt

incurred during construction of related tangible capital assets is expensed in operations in the year
incurred. Works of art and historic treasures are not recorded as assets in these financial statements.

2-11



Appendix "A" to Item 5 of AF&A Report 21-010
Page 23 of 71

City of Hamilton

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020 (all numbers in columns are in thousands of dollars)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i) Inventories

Inventories held for consumption or use are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

() Government transfers

Government transfers are recognized as revenue in the financial statements when the transfer is
authorized, any eligibility criteria are met, and a reasonable estimate of the amount can be made
except, when and to the extent that, stipulations by the transferor give rise to an obligation that meet
the definition of a liability. Government transfers that meet the definition of a liability are recognized
as revenue as the liability is extinguished.

(k) Long term receivables

Long term receivables are valued at cost. Recoverability is assessed annually, and a valuation
allowance is recorded when recoverability has been impaired. Long term receivables are written off
when they are no longer recoverable. Recoveries of long term receivables previously written off are
recognized in the year received. Interestrevenue is recognized as it is earned. Long term receivables
with significant concessionary terms are reported as an expense on the Consolidated Statement of

Operations.
() Tax revenue

Taxes receivable and tax revenue are recognized when they meet the definition of an asset, the
tax is authorized, and the taxable event has occurred.

(m) Landfill Liability

The Ontario Environmental Protection Act (the “Act”) sets out the regulatory requirements for the
closure and maintenance of landfill sites. Under the Act, the City is required to provide for closure
and post-closure care of solid waste landfill sites. The costs related to these obligations are
provided for all inactive landfill sites and active landfill sites based on usage.

(n) Contaminated Sites

Contamination is a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water or sediment of a
chemical, organic or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an environmental standard.
The liability is recorded net of any expected recoveries. A liability for remediation of contaminated
sites is recognized when all the following criteria are met:

(i) an environmental standard exists

(i) contamination exceeds the environmental standard

(iii) the City is directly responsible or accepts responsibility

(iv) it is expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and
(v) areasonable estimate of the amount can be made.

The liability is estimated based upon information that is available when the financial statements are

prepared. It is based upon the costs directly attributable to the remediation activities required using
a present value measurement technique.
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City of Hamilton

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020 (all numbers in columns are in thousands of dollars)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(o) Related parties disclosure

A related party exists when one party has the ability to exercise control or shared control over the
other. Related parties include key management personnel, their close family members and the
entities they control or have shared control over. Related party transactions are disclosed if they
occurred at a value different from that which would have been arrived at if parties were unrelated
and the transaction has material effect on the consolidated financial statements. As at December
31, 2020, there are no such related party transactions to disclose.

(p) Contingent assets

Contingent assets are possible assets arising from existing conditions or situations involving
uncertainty which will be ultimately resolved when one of more future events occur that are not within
the government’s control. Disclosure of a contingent asset is required under this standard when the
occurrence of a confirming future event is likely. As at December 31, 2020, there are no such
contingent assets to disclose.

(q) Contractual rights

Contractual rights requires the disclosure of information in regards to future rights to economic
resources arising from contracts or agreements that will result in a future economic benefit. Such
disclosure includes the nature, extent and timing of contractual rights. The City is involved with
various contracts and agreements arising in the ordinary course of business. This results in
contractual rights to economic resources. Contractual rights are reported in Note 18.

(r) Assets

The assets standard provides additional guidance on the definition of assets and what is meant by
economic resources, control, past transactions and events and from which future economic benefits
are to be obtained. For the year ended December 31, 2020, all material assets have been disclosed
and reported within this definition.

(s) Inter-Entity transactions

Inter-entity transactions standard provides guidance on how to account for and report
transactions between public sector entities that comprises a governments reporting entity. This
section provides guidance for the measurement of these transactions. All City transactions are
recorded at the exchange amount, being the amount agreed to by both parties. For the year
ended December 31, 2020, there were no material inter-entity transactions to disclose.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2020 (all numbers in columns are in thousands of dollars)

2. Adoption of new accounting standards

The following are upcoming standard and amendment changes that will be effective in future periods.
They have not been applied to the 2020 consolidated financial statements. Management is still
assessing the impact to the City’s future financial statements and the extent of the impact is still not
known at this point.

(a) PS 1201, Financial Statement Presentation

Introduces a new statement of remeasurement gains and losses. The new statement will report:
unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses, fair value remeasurements and other
comprehensive income (OCI) from GBEs / GBPs. This standard is effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after April 1, 2022 (the City’s December 31, 2023 year-end) and must be adopted
simultaneously with PS 3450-Financial Instruments and PS2601-Foreign Currency Translation.

(b) PS 2601, Foreign Currency Translation

Requires foreign exchange translation gains and losses to be reported in the statement of
remeasurement gains and losses. This standard is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or
after April 1, 2022 (the City’s December 31, 2023 year-end).

(c) PS 3280, Asset Retirement Obligations

Establishes a framework for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of legal
obligations associated with retirement of tangible capital assets in productive use. Legally
obligated costs associated with the retirement of capital assets will be accounted for over the life
of the asset, as opposed to at time the retirement occurs. This section is effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after April 1, 2022 (The City’s December 31, 2023 year-end).

(d) PS 3400, Revenue

Establishes a framework for recognition, measurement and reporting revenues that arise from
transactions that include performance obligations (revenue recognized as performance
obligations are satisfied) and transactions that do not have performance obligations (revenue
recognized at realizable value). This section is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April
1, 2023 (The City’'s December 31, 2024 year-end).

(e) PS 3450, Financial Instruments

Provides guidance on recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of financial
instruments and introduces fair value measurement for a number of financial instruments
including derivatives. This standard is effective for fiscal periods beginning on or after April 1,
2022 (the City’s December 31, 2023 year-end).

(f) Public Sector Guideline 8, Purchased Intangible
Allows public sector entities to recognize intangible purchased through an exchange transaction.

This guideline is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2023 (the City’s December
31, 2024 year-end).
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For the year ended December 31, 2020 (all numbers in columns are in thousands of dollars)

3. Cash and cash equivalents and portfolio investments

2020 2019
Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of:
Cash on hand $ 130 $ 157
Cash held in banks 452,713 181,331
Temporary investments 6,335 6,216

$ 459,178 $ 187,704

Portfolio investments are comprised of:

Unrestricted investments $ 493,854 $ 685,667
Designated investments (obligatory reserve funds) 470,579 331,278
Designated investments (Hamilton Future Fund) 58,466 52,963

$ 1,022,899 $ 1,069,908

Portfolio investments have a market value of $1,094,766,000 (2019 - $1,094,050,000). The City has
purchased $6,504,000 (2019 - $3,058,000) of its own debentures which have not been cancelled.
This investment in its own debenture is included in portfolio investments on the consolidated
statement of financial position. The gross amounts of these debentures is $393,175,000

(2019 - $383,001,000)

4. Long term receivables

The City has long-term receivables in the amount of $42,237,000 (2019 - $47,379,000). The long-term
receivables are comprised of:

2020 019
Development charge deferral agreements $ 26,658 $ 30,012
Mortgages receivable:
Downtown convert to rent program 4,784 5,425
Hamilton Utilities Corporation - 6,480
Hamilton Enterprises Holding Corporation 6,156 -
Sheraton Hotel loan 610 755
Other City loan programs 3,424 3,764
Loans to other agencies and organizations 3,091 3,632
Less: Provision for loans with concessionary terms (2,486) (2,689)
$ 42,237 $ 47,379

Development charge deferral agreements and mortgage receivables are loans which are secured by
property, with interest rates varying from 0% to 5.61% and terms of one year to thirty years.

Loans to other agencies and organizations include loans to Hamilton Conservation Authority, Catholic
Children’s Aid Society, Winona Peach Festival, Redeemer University College, the Bob Kemp Hospice,
Canadian Football Hall of Fame, Rosedale tennis Club with interest rates varying from 0% to 6.75% for
terms of up to thirty years.
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5.

Investment in Government Business Enterprises

Hamilton Ultilities Corporation, Hamilton Enterprises Holdings Corporation and Hamilton Renewable
Power Inc. are subsidiary corporations of the City and are accounted for on a modified equity basis,
consistent with the generally accepted accounting treatment for government business enterprises.

In compliance with provincial legislation enacted to restructure the electrical industry in Ontario, the
Hamilton Utilities Corporation (“H.U.C.”) was incorporated on June 1, 2000. All of the assets and liabilities
of the predecessor hydro-electric systems were transferred to H.U.C. During 2004, Hamilton Hydro
Energy Inc. was established with the City’s acceptance of a dividend in kind in the form of one common
share from H.U.C. Effective June 1, 2005, the articles of incorporation reflected the amendment of a
name change to Hamilton Renewable Power Inc. (“H.R.P.L.”). On December 18, 2017 Hamilton
Enterprises Holdings Corporation (“H.E.H.C.O.”) was incorporated.

The amounts related to government business enterprises as reported in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations for 2020 and 2019 is as reported by the Hamilton Utilities Corporation, Hamilton Enterprises
Corporation and Hamilton Renewable Power Inc.

2020 2019
Net income from H.U.C. $ 13,473 $ 12,899
Net loss from H.E.H.C.O. (2,681) (1,815)
Net (loss) income from H.R.P.1. (66) 178
$ 10,726 $ 11,262

The City's investment in Government Business Enterprises is reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Position as:

2020 2019
Investment in H.U.C. $ 288,242 $ 327,254
Investment in H.E.H.C.O. 32,020 (3,172)
Investment in H.R.P.1. (439) (231)

$ 319,823 $ 323,851

The change in investment in Government Business Enterprises is allocated as follows:

2020 2019
Investment in Government Business Enterprises at January 1 $ 323,851 $ 329,237
Net income during the year 10,726 11,262
Other comprehensive loss (806) (2,572)
Dividends (51,934) (14,076)
Issuance of capital 37,986 -
Investment in Government Business Enterprises at
December 31 $ 319,823 $ 323,851
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5.

Investment in Government Business Enterprises (continued)

The following table provides condensed supplementary financial information for Hamilton Utilities
Corporation reported by H.U.C. at December 31,2020 and December 31 ,2019 respectively.

Financial Position

Current assets

Notes receivable from Corporation
Long term receivables

Due from related parties

Future payments in lieu of income taxes
Investment in Alectra Holdings Inc.
Total assets

Current liabilities

(including current portion of long term debt)
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

Change in equity on restructuring
Shareholder's equity

Results of operations

Revenues

Operating expenses

Equity income in Alectra Holdings Inc.
Financing expenses

Other income

Gain on dilution of investment in Alectra Holdings Inc.

Equity earnings from operations

Recovery of taxes

Net income before other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive loss

Net income

Dividends paid

2020 2019
72 388
13,786 51,772
- 6,156
2,426 2,130
473 461
350,198 351,550
366,955 412,457
8 324
67,926 74,100
67,934 74,424
10,779 10,779
288,242 327,254
156 353
(188) (816)
13,147 10,541
(5) (248)
12 248
- 979
13,122 11,057
351 1,842
13,473 12,899
(693) (2,572)
12,780 10,327
51,792 13,969
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5.

Investment in Government Business Enterprises (continued)
Hamilton Utilities Corporation long term receivables and borrowings:

Long-term receivables related to a loan between the Corporation and HCE Energy ("HCE") a
corporation under common control relating to HCE's acquisition of the City of Hamilton's Central
Utilities Plant ("CUP"). The long-term borrowings were a loan between the City of Hamilton (the
City') and the Corporation relating to HCE's acquisition of the City's Central Utilities Plant ("CUP").

Prior to year-end, the Corporation and the City, along with HCE formally entered into an assignment
agreement to transfer both the remaining long-term receivable in the amount of $6,156 and long-term
borrowing in the amount of $6,156 to the City and HCE respectively. As at December 31, 2020, the
Corporation has no further contractual right to cash flows from long-term receivables and no
obligation to settle long-term borrowings with the City.

The settlement transaction comprised of long-term debt forgiveness and the transfer of long-term
receivable with related parties have been recognized directly in equity in the statement of changes in
equity.

Interest expense for the long-term borrowings was $nil (2019 - $248). Interest revenue recognized
was $nil (2019 - $248)
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5. Investment in Government Business Enterprises (continued)

The following table provides condensed supplementary financial information for Hamilton
Enterprises Holding Corporation reported by H.E.H.C.O. at December 31, 2020 and December 31,
2019 respectively.

2020 2019

Financial Position
Current assets $ 9,442 $ 8,376
Capital assets 51,618 53,086
Other assets 5,418 6,216
Future payments in lieu of income taxes 5,209 4,514
Total assets 71,687 72,192
Current liabilities

(including current portion of long term debt) 20,786 7,678
Non-current liabilities 29,962 78,762
Total liabilities 50,748 86,440
Shareholder's deficit
Non-controlling interest 78 83
Opening equity (11,159) (11,159)
Total shareholder's deficit $ 32,020 $ (3,172)
Results of operations
Revenues $ 15,527 $ 14,307
Operating expenses (16,533) (15,686)
Financing expense (1,365) (1,187)
Other income 19 199
Equity earnings from operations (2,352) (2,367)
Payment / recovery of taxes 334 (544)
Loss for the year (2,686) (1,823)
Non-controlling interest of a subsidiary 5 8
Net loss before other comprehensive income (2,681) (1,815)
Other comprehensive income (113) -
Net loss $ (2,794) $ (1,815)
Issuance of share capital 37,986 -
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5.

Investment in Government Business Enterprises (continued)

During the year, the City recognized a dividend in-kind from one of its subsidiaries, H.E.H.C.O., in
exchange for notes receivable which were formally assigned to the City in the year. The notes
receivable relate to the corporate reorganization undertaken by the H.E.H.C.O. in 2018. The
transactions during the year reflect the execution of the remaining reorganization steps that were
approved in 2018.

Subsequent to the assignment of the notes receivable, the City subscribed for $37,986 common
shares of its investment in H.E.H.C.O. in exchange for settlement of the outstanding notes receivable.

Amounts owing to Corporations under common control:

Amounts owing to corporations under common control, previously owed to Hamilton Utilities
Corporation ("H.U.C.") and now owing to the City of Hamilton are due December 31 ,2039, bearing
interest as at fixed interest rate of 4.06% throughout the term of the loan. The loan is payable in
annual principal repayments of $324 plus interest. The amounts owing to the City relate to the
Corporations' acquisition of the City of Hamiltons' Central Utilities Plant. ("CUP").

During the year, amounts owing to H.U.C. were formally assigned to the City who accepted the
assignment of borrowings and the Corporation is now remitting principal and interest payments
directly to the City.

The borrowing are secured by the assets of the CUP with a net book value of $9,273 (2019 -
$9,778) with a cross-company guarantee provided by a corporation under common control.

Interest expense for the long-term borrowings was $229 (2019 - $248). Principal payments on
the long-term borrowings and receivables are due as follows:

2020

2021 $ 324
2022 324
2023 324
2024 324
2025 324
Thereafter 4,536

$ 6,156
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5. Investment in Government Business Enterprises (continued)

The following table provides condensed supplementary financial information for Hamilton
Renewable Power Incorporated reported by H.R.P.I. at December 31, 2020 and December 31,
2019 respectively.

2020 2019

Financial Position
Current assets $ 1,325 $ 1,132
Capital assets 5,090 5,602
Other assets 32 32
Total assets 6,447 6,766
Current liabilities

(Including current portion of long term debt) 642 685
Future payment in lieu of taxes 244 312
Total liabilities 886 997
Shareholder's equity 6,000 6,000
Net deficit $ (439) $ (231)
Results of operations
Revenues $ 2,900 $ 3,199
Expenses (2,966) (3,021)
Net (loss) income $ (66) $ 178
Dividends paid 142 107

Government Business Enterprises - related party transactions

The following summarizes the Corporations related party transactions with Government Business
Enterprises for the year ended December 31.

2020 2019

Revenue

Dividend revenue from H.U.C. $ 51,792 $ 13,969

Dividend revenue from H.R.P.1. 142 107

Property and other taxes received by the City from H.U.C. 532 529

Sale of Methane to H.R.P.I. 794 814
Expenditures

Hydro purchased by the City from H.E.H.C.O. 34,224 37,874

Thermal Energy purchased from H.R.P.I. 274 284
Assets

Accounts receivable from H.R.P.I. 429 415

Long term receivable from H.U.C. - 6,480

Long term receivable from H.E.H.C.O. 6,156 -
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6. Deferred revenue — obligatory reserve funds
The deferred revenue — obligatory reserve funds, reported on the consolidated statement of financial
position, are made up of the following:
2020 2019
Development charge reserve funds $ 285,420 $ 186,994
Recreational land dedicated under the Planning Act 66,934 56,154
Gasoline tax revenue: Provincial 19,220 9,699
Federal 59,101 54,846
Building Permit Revenue 24,613 23,493
Other (Main Street Revitalization) 15 92
Safe Restart Agreement (SRA): Municipal & Transit Funding 15,276 -
$ 470,579 $ 331,278
7. Deferred revenue - obligatory reserve funds
The deferred revenue — obligatory reserve funds, reported on the consolidated statement of financial
position, are made up of the following:
2020 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year $ 331,278 $ 237,055
Add:
Developer and other contributions 183,211 134,567
Interest earned 7,385 6,516
Provincial and Federal Funding 52,770 69,166
243,366 210,249
Less:
Contributions used in operating and capital funds 104,065 116,026
Balance at the end of the year $ 470,579 $ 331,278
8. Long term liabilities — municipal operations

(a)

The long term liabilities — municipal operations consists of long term debt for serial debentures and loans
that mature in the years 2021 to 2044 with interest rates varying between 1.61% and 5.05% and
obligations for leased tangible capital assets with payments from 2021 to 2051 at a discount rate of 5%.
The balance of long term liabilities consists of the following:

2020 2019
Long term liabilities incurred by the City $ 393,175 $ 383,001
Long term liabilities for leased tangible
capital assets incurred by the City 2,123 2,741
Net long term liabilities $ 395,298 $ 385,742
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8. Long term liabilities — municipal operations (continued)

(b) Of the $393,175,000 long term debt incurred by the City (2019 - $383,001,000) certain principal payments
do not represent a burden on general City revenue, as they are to be recovered in future years from other
sources.

The total long-term debt is to be recovered from the following:

2020 2019
General Revenue $ 263,815 $ 255,373
Water & Wastewater user charges 129,360 127,628

$ 393,175 $ 383,001

(c) The total City principal repayments of long term debt in each of the next five years and thereafter are due

as follows:
General Water & Wastewater Total
Revenues User Charges 2020
2021 $ 32,036 $ 13,076 $ 45,112
2022 32,454 13,081 45,535
2023 27,232 13,028 40,260
2024 25,070 12,971 38,041
2025 25,145 12,971 38,116
2026 and thereafter 121,878 64,233 186,111
Total $ 263,815 $ 129,360 $ 393,175

(d) The total City principal repayments of leased tangible capital assets in each of the next five years and
thereafter are due as follows:

2020
2021 $ 335
2022 62
2023 62
2024 62
2025 62
2026 and thereafter 1,540
Total $ 2,123
(e) Total repayments and interest charges for the year for long term debt are as follows:
2020 2019
Principal repayments $ 41,530 $ 45,728
Interest expense 10,958 12,161

$ 52,488 $ 57,889

(f) Total repayments and interest charges for the year for leased tangible capital assets are as follows:

2020 2019
Principal repayments $ 619 $ 619
Interest expense 267 257
$ 886 $ 876
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9.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Long term debt — housing corporation

The balance of long term debt — housing corporations reported on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position represents capital assets of the CityHousing Hamilton that are financed by mortgages.
The mortgages mature in the years 2021 to 2030 with interest rates varying between 0.69% and 5.83%.
The mortgage obligations for CityHousing Hamilton are $40,991,000 (2019 - $46,967,000).

The principal repayments of these mortgages in each of the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

2020

2021 $ 5,979
2022 13,321
2023 4,082
2024 8,149
2025 3,174
2026 and thereafter 6,286

$ 40,991

Total repayments and interest charges for the year for long term debt - housing corporations are as
follows:

2020 2019
Principal repayments $ 5,976 $ 5,836
Interest expense 1,191 1,349
$ 7,167 $ 7,185

Other long term debt incurred by the City of Hamilton’s housing corporations, representing capital assets
financed by debentures issued by the Ontario Housing Corporation of $5,966,000 (2019 - $8,340,000),
is not included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. The Social Housing Reform Act,
2000 transferred the ownership and responsibility for the administration of Province of Ontario public
housing to the City of Hamilton as a local housing corporation. The transfer, effective January 1, 2001,
included land and buildings at no cost. The servicing of long term debt remains the obligation of the
Province of Ontario.
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10. Employee future benefits and other obligations

The City provides certain employee benefits that require funding in future periods. An estimate of these
liabilities has been recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. These amounts are
summarized as follows:

2020 2019
Accrued Benefit Obligation
Sick leave benefit plan (a) $ 60,015 $ 58,789
Long term disability (b) 43,676 33,431
Workplace safety and insurance board liabilities (WSIB) (c) 128,967 97,787
Retirement benefits (d) 168,449 153,571
Vacation benefits (e) 27,212 26,806
Pension benefit plans (f) (34,366) (2,196)
393,953 368,188
Net unamortized actuarial (loss) gain (11,803) 1,513
Valuation allowance 5,800 2,994
Accrued Liability $ 387,950 $ 372,695

The City has established reserves for some of these liabilities totalling $74,278,000 (2019 - $71,226,000)
as described in the following notes.

The continuity of employee future benefits and other obligations are summarized as follows:

2020 2019

Liability for Employee Future Benefits and Other Obligations

balance at beginning of the year $ 372,695 $ 373,177
Plan amendment per actuarial valuation 11,930 2,488
Benefit expense 36,920 32,101
Interest expense 12,612 13,420
Amortization of actuarial loss on accrued benefit obligations 5,600 3,220
Amortization of actuarial gain on earnings on pension assets (5,952) (3,261)
Benefit payments (45,855) (48,450)
Liability for Employee Future Benefits and Other Obligations

balance at end of the year $ 387,950 $ 372,695
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10.

(a)

(b)

Employee future benefits and other obligations (continued)

The expenses related to these employee benefits and other obligations are reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations. These expenses are summarized as follows:

2020 2019
Plan amendment per actuarial valuation $ 11,930 $ 2,488
Benefit expense 36,920 32,101
Interest expense 12,612 13,420
Amortization of net actuarial loss (351) (41)

$ 61,111 $ 47,968

Actuarial valuations are performed on post employment, retirement benefits and pension benefits to
provide estimates of the accrued benefit obligations. These estimates are based on a number of
assumptions about future events including interest rates, inflation rates, salary and wage increases,
medical and dental cost increases and mortality. The assumptions are determined at the time of the
actuarial valuations and are reviewed annually. Consequently, different assumptions may be used as
follows:

Life
Discount Return Inflation Payroll Dental Expectancy
Rate on Assets Rate Increases Increases (Years)
Vested sick leave 3.25% NA 2.0% 3.0% NA 15
Long term disability 3.00% NA 2.0% 3.0% NA 8.0
Workplace safety and insurance 3.50% NA 2.0% 3.0% NA 10.0
Retirement Benefits Health and Dental 3.50% NA 2.0% 3.0% 4.0% 12
Pensions Benefits (non-OMERS) 4.40% 4.40% 2.0% NA (1) NA 7.98t09.8

Notes:
(1) There is no estimate for future salary and wage increases in the non-OMERS pension plans as the
active employees have been transferred to OMERS.

Liability for sick leave benefit plans

The City provides a sick leave bengfit plan for certain employee groups. Under the sick leave benefit
plan of the City, unused sick leave can accumulate, and employees may become entitled to a cash
payment when they leave the City’s employment. An actuarial valuation as at December 31, 2020 has
estimated the accrued benefit obligation at $60,015,000 (2019 — $58,789,000). Changes in valuation
assumptions have resulted in an increase in the liability to $60,015,000 from the expected liability of
$58,180,000. The actuarial loss as at December 31, 2020 of $1,835,000 is being amortized over 15
years, which is the expected average remaining life expectancy of the members of the employee
groups. Reserves established to provide for this liability are included on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position in the amount of $9,570,000 (2019 - $9,586,000).

Liability for long term disability

The City provides benefits in the event of total disability for certain employee groups. An actuarial
valuation of the City’s self-insured long-term disability program as at December 31, 2020 has
estimated the accrued benefit obligation at $43,676,000 (2019 - $33,431,000). Changes in valuation
assumptions have resulted in an increase in the liability of $43,676,000 from the expected liability of
$29,745,000. The actuarial loss as at December 31, 2020 of $13,931,000 is being amortized over 8.0
years, which is the expected average remaining life expectancy of the members of the employee
groups. Reserves established to provide for this liability are included on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position in the amount of $15,044,000 (2019 - $15,612,000)
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10. Employee future benefits and other obligations (continued)
(c) Liability for workplace safety and insurance

The City is liable for compensation related to workplace injuries as stipulated by the Workplace Safety
& Insurance Act. An actuarial valuation as at December 31, 2020 estimated the accrued benefit
obligation for workplace safety & insurance existing claims and future pension awards at $128,967,000
(2019 - $97,787,000). Changes in valuation assumptions have resulted in an increase in the liability to
$128,967,000 from the expected liability of $100,965,000. The actuarial loss of $28,002,000 is being
amortized over 10.0 years, which is the expected average remaining life expectancy of the plan
members in various groups. Reserves established to provide for this liability are included on the
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position in the amount of $41,329,000 (2019 - $41,110,000).

(d) Liability for retirement enefits

The City provides certain health, dental and life insurance benefits between the time an employee
retires under the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System (OMERS) or the normal retirement
age and up to the age of 65 years. An actuarial valuation at December 31, 2020 estimated the
accrued benefit obligation at $168,449,000 (2019 - $153,571,000). Changes in valuation assumptions
have resulted in an increase in liability to $168,449,000 from the expected liability of $144,507,000.
The actuarial loss of $23,942,000 is being amortized over 19 years, which is the expected average
remaining life expectancy of the plan members in various groups. The City has $7,682,000 (2019 -
$7,430,000) set aside in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position to assist with this liability.

(e) Liability for vacation benefits

The City is liable for vacation days earned by its employees as at December 31, 2020 but not taken
until a later date. The liability as at December 31, 2020 has been estimated at $27,212,000 (2019 -
$26,806,000), of which $16,577,000 is funded by City departments’ budgets (2019 - $16,938,000)
Reserves established to provide for this liability are included on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position in the amount of $1,610,000 (2019 - $1,577,000), and the remaining liability of
$9,025,000 is unfunded (2019 - $8,291,000)

(f) Liability for pensions benefit plans

In addition to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System (OMERS) described in Note 11, the
City also provides pension benefits under three other plans. The actuarial valuations for Hamilton-
Wentworth Retirement Fund, Hamilton Street Railway Retirement Fund and Hamilton Municipal
Retirement Fund at December 31, 2019 estimated the combined accrued benefit asset of the pension
plans at $34,366,000 from an asset of $2,196,000 in 2019. Changes in valuation resulted in an asset of
$34,366,000 from an expected liability of $27,342,000. The actuarial gain of $61,708,000 is being
amortized over 7.98 to 9.8 years, which is the expected average remaining life expectancy of the plan
members. Reserves established to provide for this liability are included on the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position in the amount of $6,725,000 (2019 - $3,341,000).
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11. Pension agreements
(a) Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System

The City makes contributions to the Ontario Municipal Employees Retirement System (OMERS), which
is a multi-employer plan, on behalf of approximately 7,226 members of City staff and councillors. The
plan is a defined benefit plan, which specifies the amount of retirement benefit to be received by
employees, based on the length of credited service and average earnings.

The latest actuarial valuation as at December 31, 2020 indicates a “going concern” Actuarial Deficit based
on the plan’s current member and employer contribution rates. Contributions were made in the 2020
calendar year at rates ranging from 9.0% to 15.8% depending on the member’s designated retirement
age and level of earnings. As a result $61,086,000 (2019 - $60,176,000) was contributed to the OMERS
plan for current service.

As OMERS is a multi-employer pension plan, any pension plan surpluses or deficits are a joint
responsibility of all Ontario municipalities and their employees. The OMERS primary pension plan has a
deficit of $3.2 billion as of December 31, 2020 (2019 - $3.4 billion)

(b) Other pension plans — Hamilton-Wentworth Retirement Fund, Hamilton Municipal Retirement
Fund, and Hamilton Street Railway Retirement Fund.

Approximately 317 current employees and 955 former employees of the City are members of three
defined benefit plans; Hamilton-Wentworth, Hamilton Municipal and the Hamilton Street Railway
Retirement Funds and are current or future beneficiaries under their terms and conditions. Actuarial
valuations of the pension plans for funding purposes are required under the Pension Benefits Act every
three years. The actuarial valuations of the pension plans for accounting purposes provide different
results than the valuations for funding purposes. For funding purposes, one of the pension plans is in a
surplus position and the other two plans are in a deficit position.

The actuarial valuations for these pension plans are based on a number of assumptions about future
events including mortality, inflation and interest rates. The two plans with deficits are paying a number of
amortization schedules that will be completed over a period ranging from two to fifteen years.

The accrued pension liability reported in the Consolidated statement of Financial Position is comprised

as follows:

2020 2019
Accrued pension benefit obligation $ 309,881 $ 335,238
Pension plan assets (344,247) (337,434)
Other assets (34,366) (2,196)
Unamortized actuarial gain 55,908 33,014
Accrued pension liability 21,542 30,818
Valuation allowance 5,800 2,994
Adjusted accrued pension liability $ 27,342 $ 33,812
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11. Pension agreements (continued)

The actuarial gain or loss on pension fund assets and the actuarial gain or loss on accrued pension

benefits obligations are comprised as follows:

Expected pension fund assets at the end of year $
Actual pension fund assets at end of year

Actuarial gain on pension fund assets

Expected accrued pension benefit obligation at end of year
Actual accrued pension benefit obligation at end of year
Accrued pension benefit obligation

Actuarial gain (loss) on accrued pension benefit obligation $

The expense related to the pension plans are comprised as follows:

Amortization of net actuarial loss on accrued pension
benefit obligation $

Amortization of net actuarial loss on pension plan assets

Net amortization

Interest on average accrued pension benefit obligation $
Expected return on average pension plan assets

Net interest

Change in valuation allowance

Total expenses $

2020 2019
331,800 312,488
344,247 337,434

12,447 24,946
326,203 314,820
309,881 335,238

16,322 (20,418)

2020 2019
(162) $ (2,198)

(5,407) (2,680)

(5,569) (4,878)
14,455 $ 16,727
(14,608) (16,405)

(153) 322
2,806 2,488
(2,916) $ (2,068)

Payment of $3,555,201 (2019 - $7,907,303) have been applied to reduce the Hamilton -
Wentworth and Hamilton Street Railway plans' deficit as actuarially determined for funding
purposes. The pension deficit for the pension plans as at December 31, 2020 will be funded by

the City with payments as follows:

2021
2022
2023
2024
2025 and thereafter
Total

2020

1,770
1,890
1,956
1,956
11,736

19,308
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12. Solid waste landfill liabilities

The City owns and operates one open landfill site and it owns and maintains twelve (12) closed landfill
sites.

The active landfill site in the Glanbrook community was opened in 1980 covering 220 hectares over
three phases with a capacity of 14,824,000 cubic metres of waste. The total capacity has been broken
into three Phases, with Phase 1 having a capacity of 8,403,000, Phase 2 having a capacity of
4,855,000 cubic metres and Phase 3 having a capacity of 1,566,000 cubic metres. As at December 31,
2018 landfilling has ceased in Phase 1, and is occurring in Phase 2. Approximately 295,000 cubic
metres of un-utilized or recovered (due to site settlement) capacity had been retained at Phase 1
representing 3.5% of its theoretical approved capacity. This is intended for use in the event of an
emergency or extended lack of access into Phase 2. For the purpose of financial considerations Phase
1 should be treated as being “at capacity” although the intent is to eventually utilize the retained air
space. Filling was initiated at Phase 2 in mid-December 2018 and therefore as of December 31, 2020
still retained an estimated 4,448,000 cubic meters of capacity. It is estimated Phase 2 will reach its
capacity and close in 2046. Construction of Phase 3 has not been initiated. It is estimated that the site
will reach full capacity and close in 2055.

In 2020 approximately 42% of waste generated was diverted from landfills (2019 - 41%).

The closure costs for the open Glanbrook landfill site and post closure care costs for the closed sites
are based upon management estimates, adjusted by an inflation rate of 2.5%. These costs are then
discounted back to December 31, 2020 using a discount factor of 3.5%. Post closure care for the
Glanbrook site is estimated to be required for 50 years from the date of closure of each phase. Studies
continue to be undertaken to assess the liability associated with the City’s closed landfill sites and the
estimates will be updated as new information arises.

Estimated expenses for closure and post-closure care are $72,676,000 (2019 - $80,076,000). The
expenses remaining to be recognized are $7,528,000 (2019 - $8,656,000). The liability of $65,148,000
(2019 - $71,420,000) for closure of the operational site and post closure care of the closed sites has
been reported on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. A reserve of $1,249,000 (2019 -
$1,189,000) was established to finance the future cost for closed landfill sites.
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13. Accumulated Surplus

The accumulated surplus balance is comprised of balances in reserves and discretionary reserve funds,
operating surplus, capital surplus, unfunded liabilities to be recovered in the future, investment in
government business enterprises and investment in tangible capital assets.

2020 2019

Reserves and discretionary reserve funds set aside for

specific purposes by Council are comprised of the following:
Working funds $ 94,122 $ 84,933
Contingencies 1,017 996
Replacement of equipment 53,344 51,225
Sick leave (Note 10) 9,570 9,586
Workplace Safety and Insurance Board (WSIB) (Note 10) 41,329 41,110
Pension plans (Note 10) 6,725 3,341
Tax stabilization 65,917 20,760
General government 21,140 16,785
Protection services 1,332 1,184
Transportation services 25,911 25,396
Environmental services 167,911 224,625
Health and social services 5,846 5,478
Recreation and cultural services 19,868 23,848
Planning and development 7,896 8,046
Other unallocated 102,038 95,200
Hamilton Future Fund (Note 14) 58,466 52,963
Total reserves and discretionary reserve funds $ 682,432 $ 665,476
Operating surplus

Flamborough recreation sub-committees $ 251 $ 227

Business improvement areas 1,333 1,268

Housing operations 82,203 72,343

Confederation Park operations 200 280
Total operating surplus $ 83,987 $ 74,118
Capital surplus

Municipal operations $ 119,817 $ 113,897

Housing operations 73,952 59,960
Total capital surplus $ 193,769 $ 173,857
Unfunded liabilities

Employee benefit obligations $ (363,419) $ (348,328)

Solid Waste landfill liabilities (65,148) (71,420)

Environmental liability (15,400) -
Total unfunded liabilities $ (443,967) $ (419,748)
Investment in Government Business Enterprises (Note 5) $ 319,823 $ 323,851
Investment in tangible capital assets $ 5,629,066 $ 5,393,649
Accumulated surplus $ 6,465,110 $ 6,211,203
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14. Hamilton Future Fund

The Hamilton Future Fund was established by the Council of the City of Hamilton in 2002 from the
proceeds from Hamilton Utilities Corporation of the net assets owed to the City upon restructuring of the
electrical industry. The Hamilton Future Fund is used to create and protect a permanent legacy for
current and future generations of Hamiltonians to enjoy economic prosperity and improved quality of life.

The continuity of the Hamilton Future Fund is as follows:

2020 2019
Balance at the beginning of the year $ 52,963 $ 48,635
Current operations
Investment income 1,213 1,203
Repayment of Waste Management Projects 8,440 8,440
Other - (1,142)
9,653 8,501
Tangible capital assets
Waste Management Projects - (173)
Parkland (150) -
Other (4,000) (4,000)
(4,150) (4,173)
Balance at the end of the year $ 58,466 $ 52,963
15. Taxation
Budget Actual Actual
2020 2020 2019
Taxation from real property $ 1,140,165 $ 1,146,798 $ 1,102,694
Taxation from other governments
payments in lieu of taxes 16,526 16,900 16,551
1,156,691 1,163,698 1,119,245
Less: Taxation collected on behalf of
school boards (202,808) (205,959) (202,119)
Net taxes available for
municipal purposes $ 953,883 $ 957,739 $ 917,126

The City is required to levy and collect taxes on behalf of the school boards. The taxes levied over (under)
the amounts requisitioned are recorded as accounts payable (receivable).
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16. Government transfers

2020 2019
Government transfers received:
Policing $ 4,936 $ 4,447
Court security 5,055 4,047
Transit 14,922 5,019
Waste diversion 5,731 5,095
Public Health 46,171 33,218
Ambulance services 32,885 25,300
Social assistance 171,360 133,015
Long term care homes 27,228 22,783
Child care 66,348 78,758
Housing 24,151 23,672
Federal and provincial gas tax 40,757 51,241
Other 21,202 4,126
Infrastructure 60,559 56,212

$ 521,305 $ 447,833

2020 2019
Government transfers paid:
Social assistance $ 121,608 $ 124,549
Social housing 59,166 53,050
Grants 19,401 22,221

$ 200,175 $ 199,820

17.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Contractual obligations

The City has outstanding contractual obligations of approximately $441,657,000 at December 31,
2020 for capital works (2019 - $556,293,000). City Council has authorized the financing of these
obligations.

The City has agreements with the Ontario Realty Corporation, an agency of the Provincial
Government of Ontario, for various capital projects. The outstanding future obligations at December
31, 2020 amounting to $2,670,000 (2019 - $2,810,000) are not reflected in the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Payments made to the Ontario Realty Corporation amounting to $140,000 in
2020 (2019 - $497,000) are reported in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

The City is legislated under the Development Charges Act to fund Government of Ontario ("GO")
Transit's Growth and Capital Expansion Plan. The obligation at December 31, 2020 of $3,460,000
(2019 - $3,460,000) is reported in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. Payments are
collected through development charges and remitted to Metrolinx, an agency of the Government of
the Province of Ontario. Payments made to Metrolinx in the amount of $4,400,000 in 2020 (2019 -
$500,000) are reported in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

The City has a contract with Waste Connections (formerly known as Progressive Waste Services)
for the transfer, hauling and disposal of the City’s solid waste, including the operations of the City’s
Transfer Stations and Community Recycling Centre. The term of the agreement is ten years for the
period of March 1, 2020 to February 28, 2030. The contract fees amounting to $6,783,000 for 2020
(2019 - $7,883,000) are reported in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.
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17.

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Contractual obligations (continued)

The City has a contract with GFL Environmental Inc. for the provision of curbside/roadside collection
of organics, garbage, leaf and yard, bulk waste for one-half of the City, including curbside/roadside
recycling, automated recycling and bin waste collection for the entire City. The agreement ended on
March 28, 2020 and City exercised one-year extension option. New contract will come into effect on
March 29, 2021 and will end on April 2, 2028 (with an option of one-year extension). Contract fees
amounting to $18,608,000 for 2020 (2019 - $17,602,000) are reported in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

The City has lease agreements with Disabled and Aged Regional Transit System (D.A.R.T.S.) for
the delivery of specialized transportation services. The agreement is on a month-to-month basis

until a new contract is signed or until cancelled on 120 calendar days’ notice by either party. The
annual contract fees amounting to $14,368,000 for 2020 (2019 - $22,545,000) are reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations.

The City has executed lease agreements for administrative office space, parking lots and other land
leases requiring annual payments in future years as they become due and payable in the amount of
$67,559,000 (2019 - $47,735,000). The minimum lease payments for these leases over the next
five years and thereafter are:

2020
2021 $ 7,503
2022 6,656
2023 6,689
2024 6,218
2025 4,949
2026 and thereafter 35,544
Total $ 67,559

The City has a Credit Facility Agreement dated March 14, 2012 with a Canadian chartered bank to
borrow up to $117,740,000, consisting of $65,000,000 in a revolving demand facility, and two non-
revolving term facilities in the amounts of $38,000,000 and $14,740,000.

On May 8, 2012, the City took a drawdown of $38,000,000 and $14,740,000 from the two non-
revolving term facilities, by undertaking two term loans. No other amounts have been drawn from the
Credit Facility Agreement and therefore, as at December 31, 2020, the City has $65,000,000 in a
revolving demand facility.

The first term loan of $14,740,000 was paid in full on May 8, 2017. The second term loan has an
original principal of $38,000,000, a term of 15 years, and an annual principal repayment of
$2,533,000. As at December 31, 2020, the remaining principal balance for the second term loan is
$17,736,000 (2019 - $20,269,000). The interest cost for the City is based on the 30-day Banker’s
Acceptance rate. These loans are included in Long term liabilities — “Municipal Operations on the
Statement of Financial Position.”
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18. Contractual Rights

Contractual rights are rights to economic resources arising from contracts or agreements that will
result in revenues and assets in the future. The City has entered into an agreement with the Ontario
Lottery and Gaming Corporation (OLG) whereby quarterly contributions are received based on a
percentage of gaming revenues estimated at $5,200,000 per year.

19. Public liability insurance

The City has undertaken a portion of the risk for public liability, as a means of achieving cost effective
risk management. As a result, the City is self-insured for public liability claims up to $250,000 for any
individual claim or for any number of claims arising out of a single occurrence. Outside insurance
coverage is in place for claims in excess of $250,000 to a maximum of $50,000,000 per claim or
occurrence.

The City has reported liabilities for insurance claims on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
in the amount of $19,149,000 (2019 - $18,315,000). Claim expenses for the year in the amount of
$8,708,000 (2019 - $8,423,000) are reported as expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

20.

Contingent liabilities

The City has outstanding contractual obligations with its unionized employee groups as of December
31,2020. An estimated liability has been recorded on the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
to fund the three outstanding settlements.
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21. Tangible Capital Assets

Details of the tangible capital assets are included in the Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets (pages 2-
40 and 2-41). The City has tangible capital assets valued at cost in the amount of $9,806,138,000 (2019
- $9,372,722,000) and a net book value of $6,202,964,000 (2019 - $5,930,788,000). The net book value

of the tangible capital assets valued as at December 31, 2020 is as follows:

2020 2019
General
Land $ 403,879 $ 387,321
Land improvements 181,506 167,237
Buildings 829,290 815,472
Vehicles 138,937 148,259
Computer hardware and software 18,698 19,499
Other 92,062 93,335
Infrastructure
Roads 1,315,237 1,310,342
Bridges and structures 181,098 181,896
Water and wastewater facilities 416,470 395,495
Underground and other networks 2,021,641 1,986,865
Net Book Value 5,598,818 5,505,721
Assets under construction 604,146 425,067
Balance at the end of the year $ 6,202,964 $ 5,930,788

Included are leased tangible capital assets with a net book value of $2,123,000 (2019 - $2,741,000). In
addition, the City has works of arts and historical treasures including sculptures, fine art, murals, cemetery
crosses, cenotaphs, cannons and artillery that are preserved by the City but are not recorded as tangible

capital assets.
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22,

Reporting by Business Segment

The Consolidated Financial Statements provide a summary of the revenues and expenses for all of the
services provided to the residents and businesses in the City of Hamilton as defined in the reporting
entity (Note 1).

Certain allocation methodologies are employed in the preparation of segmented financial information.
Services are funded primarily by taxation and user fees. Taxation revenue is allocated to the general
government segment. Certain government grants, user charges and other revenues have been
allocated based upon the same allocation as the related expenses. User fees are allocated based
upon the segment that generated the fee.

Revenues and expenses are reported by the following functions and services:

e General government: Office of the Mayor and council, corporate administration including fleet and
facilities

e Protection services: police, fire, conservation authorities

e Transportation services: roads, winter maintenance, traffic, parking, transit

o Environmental services: water, wastewater, storm water, waste management collection, diversion
& disposal

o Health services: public health, cemeteries and emergency medical services/ambulance

e Social and family services: general assistance, hostels, homes for the aged, services to aged
persons, child care services

e Social housing: public housing, non-profit housing, rent supplement programs

e Recreation and cultural services: parks, recreation programs, recreation facilities, golf courses,
marinas, museums, libraries, tourism and HECFI.

e Planning and development: planning, zoning, commercial and industrial development and
residential development

Financial information about the City’s business segments is included in the Schedule of Operations for
Business Segments (pages 2-42 and 2-43).

23.

Liability for Contaminated Sites

The City of Hamilton estimates liabilities of $28,882,000 as at December 31, 2020 for remediation of
various lands using a risk-based approach (2019 - $8,993,000). Total future undiscounted
expenditures are estimated at $31,979,000. The liabilities result from past industrial uses. Future
expenditures are based on agreements with third parties, where available, as well as estimates.
Future expenditures have been discounted using a 3.5% discount rate. The amount of estimated
recoveries is nil (2019 — nil).

24,

Budget figures

The 2020 operating budget and capital financing for the housing corporation was approved by the
CityHousing Hamilton Board at a meeting on December 10, 2019. The 2020 operating budget and
capital financing for municipal operations was approved by City Council at a meeting on March 20, 2020.

The budget figures conform to the accounting standards adopted in CPA Canada Public Sector
Accounting Handbook section PS1200 Financial Statement Presentation. As such, the budget figures
presented in the consolidated financial statements differ from the presentation approved by City Council.
A summary reconciliation follows:
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24. Budget figures (continued)

2020
Revenue
Council Approved Gross Revenue Operating Budget - Municipal $ 1,777,674
Council Approved Gross Revenue - Public Health & HSD fully funded programs 34,982
Council Approved Gross Revenue Capital Budget - Municipal 727,925
2,540,581
Board Approved Gross Revenue Operating Budget - Housing Corporation 61,255
Board Approved Gross Revenue Capital Budget - Housing Corporation 7,282
68,537
Adjustments to Revenues
Less: Transfers from reserves and reserve funds Operating Budget (20,368)
Municipal Operations
Less: Transfers from reserves and reserve funds Capital Budget (184,279)
Municipal Operations
Less: Transfers from capital fund to current fund - Municipal Operations (207,124)
Less: Transfers from capital fund to current fund - Housing Corporation (7,282)
Less: Long term debt financing Capital Budget (64,103)
Add: Donated tangible capital assets 8,494
Less: Reclassification - Municipal Operations (30)
Add: Reserve & reserve funds 12,748
Add: Confederation Park Consolidation 3,298
Less: Elimination for consolidation of Housing Corporation (20,514)
(479,160)
Consolidated $ 2,129,958
Expenses
Council Approved Gross Expenditure Operating Budget - Municipal $ 1,777,674
Council Approved Gross Expenditure - Public Health & HSD fully funded programs 34,982
Council Approved Gross Expenditure Capital Budget - Municipal 727,925
2,540,581
Board Approved Gross Expenditure Operating Budget - Housing Corporation 61,255
Board Approved Gross Expenditure Capital Budget - Housing Corporation 7,282
68,537
Adjustments to Expenditures
Less: Debt principal repayment - Municipal Operations (41,530)
Less: Debt principal repayment - Housing Corporation (5,976)
Less: Transfers to reserves and reserve funds - Municipal Operations (75,501)
Less: Transfers to capital from current funds - Municipal Operations (207,124)
Less: Tangible capital assets - Municipal Operations (659,399)
Less: Tangible capital assets - Housing Corporation (7,282)
Less: Reclassification - Municipal Operations (30)
Add: Change in employee future benefits and other obligations 15,091
Less: Change in solid waste landfill liabiliy (6,273)
Add: Change in Contaminated Sites 4,489
Add: Amortization expense for tangible capital assets 214,066
Add: Confederation Park Consolidation 2,848
Less: Elimination for consolidation of Housing Corporation (23,184)
Add: Loss on disposition of tangible capital assets 10,127
(779,678)
Consolidated $ 1,829,440
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25. COVID-19

On March 11, 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization.
This has resulted in governments worldwide, including the Canadian, Ontario and municipal
governments, enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. These measures, which
include the implementation of travel bans, self-imposed quarantine periods and physical distancing, have
caused material disruption to businesses globally and in Ontario resulting in an economic slowdown.
Governments and central banks have reacted with significant monetary and fiscal interventions designed
to stabilize economic conditions however the success of these interventions is not currently
determinable.

The City of Hamilton has taken extraordinary measures to support its residents, including the most
vulnerable, through this unprecedented public health and economic challenge. The response to the
COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in significant financial pressures in 2020 estimated at $38M in
additional expenses and $55M in lost revenues. Programs and revenues that faced financial challenges
as a result of the pandemic response include:

e Public Health Services

e Ontario Works

e Housing Services

e Long-Term Care

e Paramedic Services

e Provincial Offences Act and Red Light Camera Revenues
e Parking Services

e Transit

e Ontario Lottery and Gaming Slots
e Shared Airport Revenues

o Property Tax Assistance Program
e Police Services

In response to the pandemic, the City put in place several measures to mitigate the financial impact of
the pandemic response including:

e Closure of facilities

e Temporary suspension of scheduling for part-time and casual labour

¢ Not hiring full complement of student and seasonal positions

e Redeployment of staff to affected program areas

¢ Restrictions on hiring for non-essential positions

e Strict controls on discretionary spending including training, travel and conferences

Together with the application of various COVID-19 related funding from senior levels of government,
including the Safe Restart Agreement — Municipal and Transit streams, Social Services Relief Fund,
Reaching Home Initiative, Ministry of Public Health funding, Prevention and Containment funding and
many others, the City was able to successfully mitigate many of the financial pressures related to the
COVID-19 pandemic response.

The current challenging economic climate may lead to adverse changes in cash flows, reduction of
service levels and budgetary constraints, which may also have a direct impact on the Corporation’s
revenues, annual surplus or deficit and reserve and reserve funds in the future. The situation is dynamic
and the ultimate duration and magnitude of the impact on the Corporation, surrounding economy and
services are not known at this time.
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2020 Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets

‘ General Infrastructure
Bridges & W/WW/SW
Land Land Buildings Vehicles = Computer Other Roads Other WI.VY‘.N Linear Assets Unf:ler TOTAL
Improvements Facilities Construction

Structures Network
Cost
Balance, Jan 1, 2020 $ 387,321 $ 354,095 $ 1,467,214 $ 334,807 $ 35692 $ 170,778 $ 2,512,779 $ 249,959 $ 808,438 $ 2,626,572 $ 425,067 $ 9,372,722
Additions, betterments & transfers in 2020 23,708 27,409 52,339 15,144 5,988 11,775 60,501 2,581 41,097 67,137 180,197 487,876
Disposals & writedowns in 2020 (7,380) (123) (4,817) (6,392) (6,659) (21,756) (7,755) (81) - (6,873) (1,118) (62,954)
Donations & contributions in 2020 230 - - - - - 3,178 - - 5,086 - 8,494
Balance, Dec 31, 2020 $ 403,879 $ 381,381 $ 1,514,736 $ 343,559 $ 35021 $ 160,797 $ 2,568,703 $ 252,459 $ 849,535 $ 2,691,922 § 604,146 $ 9,806,138
Accumulated amortization
Balance, Jan 1, 2020 $ - 8 186,858 $ 651,742 $ 186,548 $ 16,193 §$ 77,443 $ 1,202,437 $ 68,063 $ 412,943 $ 639,707 $ - $ 3,441,934
Amortization in 2020 - 13,054 37,746 24,331 6,789 13,014 58,735 3,357 20,122 36,919 - 214,067
Disposals in 2020 - (37) (4,042) (6,257) (6,659) (21,722) (7,706) (59) - (6,345) - (52,827)
Balance, Dec 31, 2020 $ - 8 199,875 $ 685446 $ 204,622 $ 16,323 § 68,735 $ 1,253,466 $ 71,361 $ 433,065 $ 670,281 $ - $ 3,603,174
Net book value Dec 31, 2020 $ 403,879 $ 181,506 $ 829,290 $ 138,937 $ 18,698 § 92,062 $ 1,315,237 $ 181,098 $ 416,470 $ 2,021,641 $ 604,146 $ 6,202,964
Assets under construction $ - § 47,08 § 110078 $ 1737 $ 7525 $ 3816 $ 25239 § 3452 § 377,914 § 27,337 $ (604146)
Total $ 403,879 $ 228,554 $ 939,368 $ 140,674 $ 26,223 $ 95,878 $ 1,340,476 $ 184,550 $ 794,384 $ 2,048,978 $ - $ 6,202,964
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2019 Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets

‘ General Infrastructure
Bridges & W/WW/SW
Land Land Buildings Vehicles = Computer Other Roads Other WI.VYYV Linear Assets Unf:ler TOTAL
Improvements Facilities Construction

Structures Network
Cost
Balance, Jan 1, 2019 $ 357,211 § 332,290 $1,435,768 $ 313,398 $ 24,304 $ 172,915 $ 2,460,975 $ 249,145 $ 791,180 $ 2,485,318 §$ 360,182 $ 8,982,686
Additions, betterments & transfers in 2019 31,156 21,959 35,034 35,115 11,756 11,183 64,019 836 17,487 148,539 68,062 445,146
Disposals & writedowns in 2019 (1,971) (179) (3,588) (13,706) (368) (13,320) (20,055) (22) (229) (20,210) (3,177) (76,825)
Donations & contributions in 2019 925 25 - - - - 7,840 - - 12,925 - 21,715
Balance, Dec 31, 2019 $ 387,321 § 354,095 $ 1,467,214 $ 334,807 $ 35692 $ 170,778 $ 2,512,779 $ 249,959 $ 808,438 $ 2,626,572 $ 425,067 $ 9,372,722
Accumulated amortization
Balance, Jan 1, 2019 $ - 8 174,978 $ 618,170 $ 175,897 $ 10,732 $ 77,044 $ 1,167,782 $ 64,758 $ 392,437 $ 624,307 $ - $ 3,306,105
Amortization in 2019 - 11,945 36,346 24,066 5,823 13,717 54,117 3,327 20,529 35,377 - 205,247
Disposals in 2019 - (65) (2,774) (13,415) (362) (13,318) (19,462) (22) (23) (19,977) - (69,418)
Balance, Dec 31, 2019 $ - 8 186,858 $ 651,742 $ 186,548 $ 16,193 $ 77,443 $ 1,202,437 $ 68,063 $ 412,943 $ 639,707 $ - $ 3,441,934
Net book value Dec 31, 2019 $ 387,321 $ 167,237 $ 815472 $ 148259 $ 19,499 $ 93,335 $ 1,310,342 $ 181,896 $ 395495 $ 1,986,865 $ 425,067 $ 5,930,788
Assets under construction $ 14 $ 49,403 § 5056 $ 3247 $ 3665 $ 1,132 ¢ 28,820 $ 79,596 $ 220,281 $ 33,853 $  (425,067)
Total $ 387,335 § 216,640 $ 820,528 $ 151,506 $ 23,164 $ 94,467 $ 1,339,162 $ 261,492 $ 615776 $ 2,020,718 $ - $ 5,930,788
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2020 Schedule of Operations for Business Segments

General Protection Transportation Environmental Health Social_and Social Recreation Planning and
government  services services services services fan?|Iy housing and ctfltural development TOTAL 2020
services services
Revenue
Taxation $ 957,739 $ -3 - 8 -8 -3 -3 -8 -3 - $ 957,739
Government grants and contributions 10,147 15,049 52,090 52,198 79,544 264,936 35,672 9,854 1,815 521,305
User charges 5,326 5,274 37,266 240,856 3,262 14,337 290 11,279 11,426 329,316
Development charges and subdivider contributions 116 1,117 11,384 10,421 - - - 9,769 886 33,693
Donations of tangible capital assets - - 3,178 5,086 - - - 230 - 8,494
Investment income 16,789 1,116 3,309 9,349 39 141 571 1,726 505 33,545
Income from Government Business Entreprises 10,726 - - - - - - - - 10,726
Other 18,870 25,926 11,366 629 578 245 51,858 8,593 2,461 120,526
Total $ 1,019,713 $ 48482 §$ 118,593 § 318,539 § 83,423 § 279,659 $ 88,391 $ 41,451 § 17,093 $ 2,015,344
Expenses
Salaries and benefits $ 70,150 $ 287,039 $ 114,554 § 47,076 §$ 100,088 $ 85748 $ 17,139 § 66,052 $ 31,342 $ 819,188
Interest on long term debt 608 1,310 2,937 4,478 386 230 1,194 1,198 75 12,416
Materials supplies services 47,739 19,196 37,920 41,955 7,737 7,903 15,738 21,005 3,852 203,045
Contracted services 21,549 3,896 48,469 75,270 5,116 84,290 27,823 4,403 11,352 282,168
Rents and financial expenses 2,952 2,163 6,039 5,072 2,256 3,015 4,251 9,995 337 36,080
External transfers 121 9,723 - 1,073 40 141,292 35,661 5,196 561 193,667
Amortization 9,880 9,188 86,598 63,148 3,319 2,406 7,384 29,230 2,914 214,067
Interfunctional transfers (84,920) 8,728 26,134 13,756 7,988 8,639 873 12,853 5,949 -
Total $ 68,079 $ 341,243 § 322,651 § 251,828 $ 126,930 $ 333,523 $ 110,063 $ 149,932 $ 56,382 $ 1,760,631
Annual surplus (deficit) $ 951,634 §$ (292,761) $ (204,058) $ 66,711 $ (43,507) $ (53,864) $ (21,672) $ (108,481) $ (39,289) $ 254,713

2-42



Appendix "A" to Item 5 of AF&A Report 21-010
Page 54 of 71

City of Hamilton

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As at December 31, 2020 (all numbers in columns are in thousands of dollars)

2019 Schedule of Operations for Business Segments

General Protection Transportation Environmental Health Social.and Social Recreation Planning and
government  services services services services fa"!“y housing and CL!IturaI development TOTAL 2019
services services
Revenue
Taxation $ 917,126 $ - % - 8 -8 -3 -3 -3 -3 - $ 917,126
Government grants and contributions 1,696 9,751 52,898 40,645 58,785 234,556 40,356 4,768 4,378 447,833
User charges 5,542 6,158 66,033 238,185 3,291 16,994 949 24,239 10,754 372,145
Development charges and subdivider contributions (1,164) 1,439 19,127 30,956 - - - 6,981 3,307 60,646
Donations of tangible capital assets - - 7,840 12,925 - - - 950 - 21,715
Investment income 19,277 1,289 3,473 10,485 63 147 471 1,860 533 37,598
Income from Government Business Entreprises 11,262 - - - - - - - - 11,262
Other 27,504 28,562 10,591 3,205 228 88 45,410 9,278 3,898 128,764
Total $ 981,243 $§ 47,199 §$ 159,962 $ 336,401 $ 62,367 $ 251,785 $ 87,186 $ 48,076 $ 22,870 $ 1,997,089
Expenses
Salaries and benefits $ 70,975 $ 276,170 $ 118,028 $ 47,208 $ 82,100 $ 80,184 $ 13,789 $ 78,269 $ 30,908 $ 797,631
Interest on long term debt 1,540 546 3,393 4,868 399 315 1,349 1,270 87 13,767
Materials supplies services 35,518 20,591 43,121 38,914 7,388 8,141 16,176 29,738 3,721 203,308
Contracted services 24,935 3,634 60,013 82,024 3,468 81,231 31,726 16,469 6,134 309,634
Rents and financial expenses 3,333 1,979 6,841 4,894 2,135 2,502 3,108 4,462 1,830 31,084
External transfers 280 9,406 - 1,296 14 127,009 23,341 5,655 1,470 168,471
Amortization 9,031 8,513 81,455 62,161 3,259 2,363 6,908 28,578 2,979 205,247
Interfunctional transfers (78,986) 9,419 24,868 11,413 7,294 7,616 734 12,508 5,134 -
Total $ 66,626 $ 330,258 $ 337,719 $ 252,778 $ 106,057 $ 309,361 $ 97,131 $ 176,949 $ 52,263 $ 1,729,142
Annual surplus (deficit) $ 914,617 $ (283,059) $ (177,757) $ 83,623 $ (43,690) $ (57,576) $ (9,945) $ (128,873) $ (29,393) $ 267,947
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KPMG LLP

Commerce Place

21 King Street West, Suite 700
Hamilton ON L8P 4W7
Canada

Tel 905-523-8200

Fax 905-523-2222

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the
City of Hamilton

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of The City of Hamilton Trust
Funds — Cemetery and General Trust (the Entity), which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020

e the consolidated statement of operations and accumulated surplus for the year then
ended

e and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies

(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”)

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of The City of Hamilton Trust Funds — Cemetery and
General Trust as at December 31, 2020, and its results of operations for the year then
ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of
our report.

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our
other responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.



Appendix "A" to Item 5 of AF&A Report 21-010
Page 59 of 71

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's
internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity
to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Lhns -
e L

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Hamilton, Canada
May 6, 2021
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City of Hamilton

Trust Funds — Consolidated
As at December 31, 2020

Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2020

2020 2019

Financial assets

Cash $ 4,268,815 $ 2,486,026

Investments (Note 2) 16,420,085 16,800,084

Due from City of Hamilton - Cemetery (Note 3) 1,227,777 1,238,993

Due from City of Hamilton - Other Trust Funds (Note 3) 35,571 42,071
Total financial assets $ 21,952,248 $ 20,567,174
Liabilities

Deposits $ 578,570 $ 507,160
Accumulated surplus and net financial assets $ 21,373,678 $ 20,060,014

Statement of Operations
Year ended December 31, 2020
2020 2019

Revenues

Cemetery lots and interments $ 915,158 $ 818,379

Investment income 590,205 596,006

Other revenue - -
Total revenue $ 1,505,363 $ 1,414,385
Expenses

Transfer to other trust funds $ 176,423 $ 124,143

Other 15,276 18,659
Total expenses $ 191,699 $ 142,802
Annual surplus $ 1,313,664 $ 1,271,583
Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year 20,060,014 18,788,431
Accumulated surplus at the end of the year (Note 4) $ 21,373,678 $ 20,060,014

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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City of Hamilton
Trust Funds

Notes to The Financial Statements
As at December 31, 2020

1.

(a)

(b)

Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements of the City of Hamilton Trust Funds (the “Trust Funds”), including
the financial statements of the Cemetery and financial statements of the Other Trusts, are the
representation of management prepared in accordance Canadian public sector accounting standards.
Since precise determination of many assets and liabilities is dependent upon future events, the
preparation of periodic financial statements necessarily involves the use of estimates and
approximations.

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated statements reflect the revenues, expenditures, assets and liabilities of the following
trust funds:

Fieldcote Farmer (Ancaster)

Dundas Knowles Bequest

Hamilton F. Waldon Dundurn Castle
Dundas Ellen Grafton

Ancaster Fieldcote Livingstone-Clarke
Ancaster Fieldcote Shaver

Hamilton Balfour Estate Chedoke
Cemetery Trust Funds

Municipal Election Surplus

Basis of accounting
(i) Sources of financing and expenditures are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.

(i) The accrual basis of accounting recognizes revenues as they become available and measurable;
expenditures are recognized as they are incurred and measurable.

(i) Revenues on the cemetery lots are recognized upon transfer of title of the deed.

Investments

The total investments recorded at the lower of cost or market value in the Statement of Financial Position
are $16,420,085 (2019 - $16,800,084). These investments have a market value of $18,555,153 (2019 -
$17,946,604) at the end of the year.

Due from City of Hamilton

The amount due from the City of Hamilton is non-interest bearing with no fixed repayment terms.

Deposits

Deposits are comprised of cash receipts related to prepayment plan arrangements associated with funeral
and other final expenses.

3-5



Appendix "A" to Item 5 of AF&A Report 21-010

Page 62 of 71

City of Hamilton
Trust Funds

Notes to The Financial Statements
As at December 31, 2020

5. Accumulated surplus

2020 201

The accumulated surplus consists of:
Cemeteries $ 20,722,605 $ 19,408,095

Other

Fieldcote Farmer (Ancaster) 332,966 334,070
Knowles Bequest (Dundas) 248,669 249,692
F. Walden Dundurn Castle (Hamilton) 6,742 6,586
Ellen Grafton (Dundas) 8,103 8,007
Fieldcote Livingstone-Clarke (Ancaster) 5,155 5,155
Fieldcote Shaver (Ancaster) 5,155 5,155
Municipal Election (Hamilton) 36,868 36,011
Balfour Estate Chedoke (Hamilton) 7,415 7,243
$ 651,073 $ 652,544
$ 21,373,678 $ 18,788,431

6. COVID-19

During fiscal 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization.
This has resulted in governments worldwide, including the Canadian and Ontario governments, enacting
emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. These measures, which include the
implementation of travel bans, self-imposed quarantine periods and social distancing, have caused
material disruption to businesses globally and in Ontario resulting in an economic slowdown.
Governments and central banks have reacted with significant monetary and fiscal interventions designed
to stabilize economic conditions however the success of these interventions is not currently determinable.
The current challenging economic climate may lead to adverse changes in cash flows, working capital
levels and/or debt balances, which may also have a direct impact on the Trust’'s operating results and
financial position in the future. As it relates to fiscal 2020, there have not been adverse changes to the
Trust's operating results and financial position due to COVID-19. The situation is dynamic and the ultimate
duration and magnitude of the impact on the economy and the financial effect on business in the future
is not known at this time.
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City of Hamilton
Trust Funds - Cemetery
As at December 31, 2020
Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2020
2020 2019

Financial assets

Cash $ 3,904,559 $ 2,162,423

Investments 16,168,839 16,513,839

Due from City of Hamilton 1,227,777 1,238,993
Total financial assets $ 21,301,175 $ 19,915,255
Liabilities

Deposits $ 578,570 $ 507,160
Accumulated surplus $ 20,722,605 $ 19,408,095

Statement of Operations
Year ended December 31, 2020
2020 2019

Revenues

Cemetery lots and interments $ 915,158 $ 818,379

Investment income 578,117 580,939
Total revenue $ 1,493,275 $ 1,399,318
Expenses

Transfer to other trust funds $ 168,594 $ 115,088

Other 10,171 12,022
Total expenses $ 178,765 ) 127,110
Annual surplus $ 1,314,510 $ 1,272,208
Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year 19,408,095 18,135,887
Accumulated surplus at the end of the year $ 20,722,605 $ 19,408,095

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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City of Hamilton

Trust Funds — Other
As at December 31, 2020

Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2020

020 2019
Financial assets
Cash $ 364,256 $ 323,602
Investments 251,246 286,246
Due from City of Hamilton 35,571 42,071
Total financial assets $ 651,073 $ 651,919
Accumulated surplus $ 651,073 $ 651,919
Statement of Operations
Year ended December 31, 2020
2020 2019
Revenues
Investment income $ 12,088 $ 15,067
Total revenue $ 12,088 $ 15,067
Expenses
Transfer to other trust funds $ 7,829 $ 9,055
Other 5,105 6,637
Total expenses $ 12,934 $ 15,692
Annual deficit $ (846) $ (625)
Accumulated surplus at the beginning of the year 651,919 652,544
Accumulated surplus at the end of the year $ 651,073 $ 651,919

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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KPMG LLP

Commerce Place

21 King Street West, Suite 700
Hamilton ON L8P 4W7
Canada

Tel 905-523-8200

Fax 905-523-2222

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Council, Inhabitants and Ratepayers of the
City of Hamilton

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The City of Hamilton Trust Funds —
Homes for the Aged (the Entity), which comprise:

e the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020

e the statement of operations and accumulated surplus for the year then ended

e and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies

(Hereinafter referred to as the “financial statements”)

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of The City of Hamilton Trust Funds — Homes for the
Aged as at December 31, 2020, and its results of operations for the year then ended
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
“Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of
our report.

We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada and we have fulfilled our
other responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KPMG LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership and member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms
affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee
KPMG Canada provides services to KPMG LLP
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting
standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Entity or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Entity’s
financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing
standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's
internal control.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Entity's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements
represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Kins “X
b

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants

Hamilton, Canada
May 27, 2021
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City of Hamilton
Trust Funds — Homes for the Aged

As at December 31, 2020 with comparative information for 2019

Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2020

Macassa Wentworth Macassa Wentworth

Lodge Lodge Lodge Lodge
Resident Resident Other Other Total Total
Trusts Trusts Trusts Trusts 2020 2019
Financial assets
Cash $ 22356 $ 33,013 $26,878 $ 330,574 $412,821 $ 123,823
Investments - - - - - 280,523
Total financial assets 22,356 33,013 26,878 330,574 412,821 404,346
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Accumulated surplus $ 22356 $ 33,013 $26,878 $ 330,574 $412,821 $ 404,346
Statement of Operations
Year ended December 31, 2020
Macassa Wentworth Macassa Wentworth
Lodge Lodge Lodge Lodge
Resident Resident Other Other Total Total
Trusts Trusts Trusts Trusts 2020 2019
Revenue
Residents’ deposits $ 89,937 $ 32908 $ 1,063 $ 8,342 $132,250 $ 276,887
Investment income - - 283 7,941 8,224 11,431
Donations - - 2,457 - 2,457 857
89,937 32,908 3,803 16,283 142,931 289,175
Expenses
Maintenance payments $ 400 $ 9581 $ - 3 - $ 13,671 $ 25,033
Residents’ charges 83,085 12,509 126 10,000 105,720 218,673
Payments to estates 9,140 5,925 - - 15,065 23,948
Renovation expense - - - - - -
96,315 28,015 126 10,000 134,456 267,654
Annual surplus (deficit) (6,378) 4,893 3,677 6,283 8,475 21,521
Accumulated surplus at
the beginning of the year 28,734 28,120 23,201 324,291 404,346 382,825
Accumulated surplus at
the end of the year $ 22356 $ 33,013 $26,878 $ 330,574 $412,821 $ 404,346

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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City of Hamilton
Trust Funds — Homes for the Aged

Notes to the Financial Statements
As at December 31, 2020

1. Purpose of Trust Funds
The various Trust Funds administered by the City of Hamilton are established for the following purposes:
Macassa and Wentworth Lodge Resident Trusts
These Trust Funds are established for residents to receive their funds and to pay for their various charges
including monthly maintenance payments.
Macassa and Wentworth Lodge Other Trusts
These Trust Funds are established for the receipts of funds from donations and fund-raising activities. The
funds are to be used for the benefit of lodge residents over and above normal capital and operating expenses
of the lodges.

2. Significant accounting policies
The financial statements of the Trust Funds of The City of Hamilton are the representation of management
prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.
Basis of accounting
The Trust Funds follow the accrual method of accounting for revenues and expenses. Revenues are normally
recognized in the year in which they are earned and measurable. Expenses are recognized as they are
incurred and measurable as result of receipt of goods and services and/or the creation of a legal obligation to
pay.

3. Investments
During 2020, Wentworth Lodge’s investments were sold. The fair market value at the time of sale was
$287,978 which is now part of the Cash balance as at December 31, 2020. In 2019, the total investments
recorded at the lower of cost or market value in the Statement of Financial Position amounted to $280,523,
and these investments had a market value of $285,598.

4, COVID-19

On March 11, 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization.
This has resulted in governments worldwide, including the Canadian and Ontario governments, enacting
emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. These measures, which include the implementation
of travel bans, self-imposed quarantine periods and social distancing, have caused material disruption to
businesses globally and in Ontario resulting in an economic slowdown. With respect to the Trust Funds, the
safety restrictions caused many social programs to be cancelled for prolonged periods of time, resulting in a
decrease in monies deposited and withdrawn by the residents. The outbreak restrictions also paused the
admission of new residents, resulting in decreased deposits to resident trusts. The current challenging
economic climate may lead to adverse changes in cash flows, working capital levels and/or debt balances,
which may also have a direct impact on the Fund’s operating results and financial position in the future. The
situation is dynamic and the ultimate duration and magnitude of the impact on the economy and the financial
effect on business is not known at this time.
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2021 City Enrichment Fund

OPERATING - BASED GROUPS

Ref No Organization Program-Event-Project Name Final 2020 Funded 2021 Funding Total Program 2021 Funding
Rating Request Budget Recommendation
ARTS
ART A-1  |Supercrawl Productions Annual Operations 97 S 137,957 | $ 175,000 | $ 1,294,000 | $ 137,957
ART A-2 | Art Gallery of Hamilton Annual Operations 93 S 1,000,000 | $ 1,500,000 | S 6,035,000 | S 1,000,000
ART A-3  |Hamilton Philharmonic Orchestra Annual Operations 91 S 175,099 | $ 250,000 | S 1,400,500 | S 175,099
ART A-4  |Hamilton Artists Inc. Annual Operations 90 S 59,303 | $ 73,000 | S 297,200 | S 59,303
ART A-5 |Theatre Aquarius Inc. Annual Operations 90 S 265,302 | S 270,608 | S 2,249,560 | S 265,302
ART A-6  |Centre[3] for Print and Media Arts Annual Operations 89 S 54,653 | S 80,000 | $ 1,057,000 | S 54,653
ART A-7  |Hamilton Arts Council Annual Operations 89 S 42,700 | $ 80,985 | $ 428,460 | S 42,700
ART A-8 |Dundas Valley School of Art Annual Operations 88 S 111,291 | $ 453,837 | S 1,790,451 | $ 111,291
ART A-9 |HCA Dance Theatre Annual Operations 88 S 10,000 | S 34,000 | S 179,000 | $ 10,000
ART A-10 |Brott Music Festival Annual Operations 87 S 182,800 | $ 250,000 | S 1,489,895 | S 182,800
ART A-11 |Factory Media Centre Annual Operations 85 S 18,800 | S 30,000 | S 135,090 | $ 18,800
ART A-12 |Workers Arts and Heritage Centre Annual Operations 84 S 36,414 | S 36,414 | S 489,503 | $ 36,414
ART A-13 |Hamilton Festival Theatre Company Annual Operations 82 S 54,114 | S 62,500 | S 537,435 | S 54,114
ART A-15 |Hamilton Literary Festival Association Annual Operations 81 S 13,525 | S 14,000 | S 68,700 | S 13,525
ART A-16 |The Westdale Annual Operations 81 S - S 30,000 | S 722,708 | S 12,808
ART A-17 |Tottering Biped Theatre Annual Operations 81 S 15,000 | S 30,000 | S 148,900 | $ 12,809
ART A-18 |Carnegie Gallery Annual Operations 80 S 15,300 | S 20,000 | S 249,364 | S 15,300
ART A-19 |Telling Tales Annual Operations 80 S 17,037 | S 30,000 | S 264,700 | $ 17,037
ART A-20 |Hamilton Children's Choir Annual Operations 77 S 53,310 | S 53,310 | S 463,033 | $ 53,310
ART A-21 |Hamilton All Star Jazz Bands Inc. Annual Operations 76 S 9,500 | S 9,500 | S 43,550 | § 9,500
ART A-23 |Bach Elgar Choir Annual Operations 75 S 28,500 | S 35,000 | S 119,210 | § 28,500
ART A-24 |Harlequin Singers of Hamilton Annual Operations 74 S 3,850 | S 3,850 | S 20,240 | S 3,850
ART A-25 |Red Betty Theatre Annual Operations 74 S 76,133 | S 252,028
ART A-26 |Dundas Concert Band Annual Operations 73 S 2,400 | S 2,700 | $ 9,327 | $ 2,400
ART A-27 |Hamilton Music Collective Annual Operations 73 S 63,648 | S 75,000 | S 529,174 | S 63,648
ART A-28 |Hamilton Philharmonic Youth Orchestra |Annual Operations 70 S 9,500 | $ 10,000 | S 55,537 | S 9,500
ART A-30 |Hamilton Mountain Writers' Guild Annual Operations 66 S 3,180 | S 10,600
ART A-31 |Momentum Choir Annual Operations 65 S - S 13,400 | S 44,698
ART A-32 |Aeris Kérper Contemporary Dance Annual Operations 63 S 30,000 | $ 335,610
ART A-33 | Culture for Kids in the Arts Annual Operations 63 S 24,117 | S 30,000 | S 371,906 | S 24,117
ART A-34 |Hamilton Black Film Festival Annual Operations 62 S 9,774 | S 39,500




Appendix "B" to Item 10 of AF&A Report 21-010

Page 2 of 2
2021 City Enrichment Fund
OPERATING - BASED GROUPS
Ref No Organization Program-Event-Project Name Final 2020 Funded 2021 Funding Total Program 2021 Funding
Rating Request Budget Recommendation
ART A-35 |Tune In Foundation Annual Operations 56 S 28,000 | S 148,000 | $ -
ART A-36 |Musikay Annual Operations 55 S - S 7,500 | S 24,050 | S -
ART A-40 |Hamilton Community Darkroom Annual Operations DNQ S 7,698 | S 25,660 | -
S 2,404,120 | S 3,815,389 | $ 21,329,589  $ 2,414,737
ENVIRONMENT
ENV A-2  |Sustainable Hamilton Burlington Business Development Initiative 86 S 15,975 | S 25,000 | S 96,320 | $ 15,975
ENV A-3  |Hamilton Victory Gardens Planting Happiness, Reducing 60 S - S 19,296 | S 64,320 | S 9,648
Hunger
ENV B-5 |Sustainable Hamilton Burlington Development of a Water 87 S 20,805 | S 35,000 | S 113,370 | S 20,805
Management Framework for
Business Organizations
S 36,780 | $ 79,296 | $ 274,010 | S 46,428
TOTAL OPERATING BASED FUNDING $ 2,440,900 $ 3,894,685 $ 21,603,599 S 2,461,165
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2021 City Enrichment Fund

AGRICULTURE
Awaiting submission of additional information

Ref No Organization Program-Event-Project Name Final 2020 Funded 2021 Funding Total Program 2021 Funding
Rating Request Budget Recommendation
Agriculture - Programs and Events
AGR A-1  |Ancaster Agricultural Society Ancaster Fair 86/ S 26,000 | S 26,000 | $ 595,367 | $ 26,000
AGR A-2 Binbrook Agricultural Society Binbrook Fair 85 S 20,000 | $ 257,450 | S 10,200
AGR A-3 Hamilton-Wentworth 4-H Association | Agriculture 82| S 6,120 | S 6,000 | S 24,550 | S 6,000
AGR A-4  |Rockton Agricultural Society Rockton World's Fair 82| S - S 50,000 | $ 928,530 | $ 27,139
Hamilton-Wentworth Federation of |Ag Communications and Mental Health
AGR A-5  |Agriculture Awareness 77 S 3,990 | S 13,390 | S 1,995
AGR A-6  |Ancaster Farmers' Market Ancaster Farmers Market 76| S 3,000 | $ 5,000 | $ 34,400 | S 3,000
Locke Street Farmers Market Community
AGR A-7  |Locke Street Farmers' Market Programming 74| S - S 3,000 | S 11,201 | $ 1,950
The Equestrian Association for the
AGR A-8 Disabled (T.E.A.D.) Leaders in the Field 74 S 10,000 | $ 35,000 | $ 5,000
AGR A-9  |Farm Crawls of Ontario Farm Crawl Hamilton 71 S 4,080 | S 5,100 | S 17,000 | S 4,080
Golden Horseshoe Beekeepers
AGR A-10 |Association GHBA Public Education Program 71 $ 1,110 | $§ 2,200 | S 6,925 | S 1,475
To beautify Ancaster and educate the
residents on horticultural and ecological
AGR A-11 |Ancaster Horticultural Society topics 70/ $ 4,000 | $ 4,000 | $ 15,894 | S 4,000
Southwentworth Plowmen's Southwentworth Plowmen's Association-
AGR A-12 |Association Annual Plowing Match 68| S - S 2,000 | S 6,100 | S 1,428
AGR A-13 |Ottawa Street Farmers' Market Nutritional Education 66 S - S 5,000 | S 15,000 | $ 2,500
Hamilton-Wentworth Soil & Crop
AGR A-14 |Improvement Association Advancing Agriculture in Hamilton 3.0 65 S 2,923 | S 3,940 | S 11,600 | S 2,923
AGR A-15 |Stoney Creek BIA Agriculture - Programs and Events 64 S 3,000 | S 12,000 | S 1,500
AGR A-16 |Canteen Destiny The Art of Agriculture 61 S 8,800 | S 12,000 | $ 55,350 Withdrew
North Wentworth Plowmen's
AGR A-17 |Association North Wentworth Plowing Match 60 S - S 1,437 | S 4,791 | S 1,000
Hamilton Wentworth District Women's
AGR A-18 |Wentworh District WI Institute 4_h Scholarships and Rose 60| S 2,500 | S 5,000 | S 17,000 | S 2,500
Westdale Village BIA/ Greater
AGR A-19 |Hamilton Arts and Events Agriculture - Programs and Events 60 S 3,000 | S 12,000 | S 1,500
$ 58533 §$ 170,667 | $ 2,073,548 | $ 104,190
TOTAL AGRICULTURE S 58,533 S 170,667 S 2,073,548 S 104,190
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2021 City Enrichment Fund

ARTS

Awaiting submission of additional information

Ref No Organization Program-Event-Project Name Final 2020 Funded 2021 Funding Total Program 2021 Funding
Rating Request Budget Recommendation
ARTS Operating
ART A-14 |Dundas Pipes and Drums * Annual Operations 81| S 3,860 | $ 3,027 | $ 10,090 | $ 3,027
ART A-22 |Hamilton Youth Steel Orchestra (HYSO)* |Annual Operations 76| S 10,098 | $ 11,300 | $ 37,886 | S 10,098
ART A-29 |Immigrant Culture and Art Association ! |[Annual Operations 68| S 18,000 | $ 33,000 | S 100,200 | $ 18,000
ART A-37 |Chamber Music Hamilton * Annual Operations TBD| S - S 20,000 | S 75,300 | S 5,635
ART A-38 |Hamilton Academy of Performing Arts* |Annual Operations TBD| $ 20,000 | S 30,000 | S 166,655 | $ 20,000
ART A-39 |Legacy Winter Guard ! Annual Operations TBD| S 2,400 | $ 5,000 | $ 30,000 | S 2,400
5 54,358 | $ 102,327 | S 420,131 | $ 59,160
ARTS Art Festivals
ART B-1 Festival of Friends (Hamilton- Festival of Friends 94| S 25,329 | S 100,000 | S 443,276 | $ 90,000
Wentworth)
ART B-2 Westdale Village BIA/ Greater Hamilton |ArtsFest 2021 91| S 25,000 | $ 50,000 | $ 207,000 | $ 25,000
Arts and Events
ART B-3 Centre francophone Hamilton FrancoFEST 90| $ 26,530 | S 40,000 | S 199,000 | $ 26,010
ART B-4 Hamilton Youth Poets Poetic Licence 86| S 10,404 | S 11,200 | S 54,062 | S 10,200
ART B-5 Shush Inc. Strange Day at the Bay 2021 86| S 5,036 | S 10,000 | S 39,160 | $ 4,937
ART B-6 Steel City Jazz Festival 8th Annual Steel Citv Jazz Festival 61 S - S 5,500 | S 18,100 | $ -
S 92,299 | S 216,700 | S 960,598 S 156,147
ARTS Capacity Building
ART C-1 Culture for Kids in the Arts Arts: Capacity Building 93 S 11,300 | S 37,800 | $ 8,475
ART C-2 Supercrawl Productions Supercrawl Equity and Diversity Plan 92 S 10,000 | S 35,000 | $ 7,500
ART C-3 Hamilton Children's Choir Hamilton Children's Choir 91 S 25,000 | $ 495,033 | § 18,750
ART C-4 Hamilton Artists Inc. Development Plan 2021 89 S 8,000 | S 26,950 | $ 6,000
ART C-5 Hamilton Arts Council Capacity Building 2021 89 S 4,635 | S 15,435 | $ 3,476
ART C-6 HCA Dance Theatre HCA Dance Theatre Capacity Building 77 S 10,000 | S 35,000
Project
ART C-7 Harlequin Singers of Hamilton Harlequin Singers Live! 2021 Concert 71 S 8,000 | $ 28,240
Series
ART C-8 Factory Media Centre Capacity Building - Staff and Board 67 S 7,000 | S 22,900
Training
ART C-9 Aeris Kérper Contemporary Dance Hamilton Theatre and Dance Enrichment DNQ S 25,000 | S 106,000 | S -
Studio
S - S 108,935 | $ 802,358 | $ 44,201

ARTS Creations and Presentations Grants for Arts Professionals
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2021 City Enrichment Fund

ARTS

Awaiting submission of additional information

Ref No Organization Program-Event-Project Name Final 2020 Funded 2021 Funding Total Program 2021 Funding
Rating Request Budget Recommendation
ART D-1 Josh Taylor The Uncomfortable Project 100 S 7,875 | $ 26,250 | S 5,906
ART D-2 Anne Bokma Writing & Editing The 6-Minute Memoir: 60 Short True-Life 93 S 6,000 | $ 24,900 | $ 4,500
Tales
ART D-3 Brandon Vickerd Domesticated Forest 93 S 10,000 | S 43,000 | $ 7,500
ART D-4 David J Trautrimas Established Artist Project 93 S 10,000 | S 35,000 | $ 7,500
ART D-5 The Hamilton LOFT Creation and Presentation Arts - 93 S 10,000 | S 42,145 | S 7,500
Established
ART D-6 Matthew MacFadzean Creation and Presentation For Artists 92 S 10,000 | S 38,991 | $ 7,500
ART D-7  |Open Heart Arts Theatre Conversations Around the Table 92 S 10,000 | S 59,300 | $ 7,500
ART D-8 Laura Marotta Established Artist Project 91 S 10,000 | S 34,000 | $ 7,500
ART D-9 Mashal Khan Anthology Film Series Production Grant - 91 S 5,000 | $ 20,250 | $ 3,750
Title TBD
ART D-10 |Paulo Enrique Leon-Reyes Emerging Artist Project 91 S 5,000 | $ 19,433 | S 3,750
ART D-11 |Diana Panton \"blue\" 90 S 8,970 | S 29,900 | $ 6,728
ART D-12 |Tom Wilson Blood Memory 90 S 10,000 | S 74,000 | S 7,500
ART D-13  |David Hudson Proximal 88 S 7,600 | $ 25,450 | $ 5,700
ART D-14 |David Lee The Furies 86 S 6,000 | $ 40,000 | $ 4,500
ART D-15 |Edgardo Moreno Beginning is Near 86 S 4,000 | S 13,550 | S 3,000
ART D-16 |Bonus Earth Bonus Earth Art Lab 84 S 5,000 | § 22,480 | S 3,750
ART D-17 |Kayla Whitney For The Culture Mural 84 S 2,280 | S 7,600 | S 1,710
ART D-18 |Anuja Varghese Emerging Artist Project 83 S 2,750 | $ 12,200 | $ 501
ART D-19 |Karen Ancheta Established Artist Project 83 S 10,000 | S 36,784 | S -
ART D-20 |Apostoleas Apostoleas with Cesar F. Cordoba Correa 82 S 10,000 | S 35,000 | $ -
ART D-21 |Ariel Bader-Shamai Mamaloshen 81 S 3,630 | S 8,500 | S -
ART D-22 |Megan English 'The Feeling of Words' 81 ) 10,000 | S 44,300 | S -
ART D-23 |Alex Whorms Emerging Artist Project 80 S 5,000 | $ 17,100 | $ -
ART D-24 |Darren Stewart-Jones Established Artist Project 80 S 10,000 | S 40,000 | S -
ART D-25 |Lisa Crawford Emerging Artist Project 78 S 5,000 | S 95,000 | $ -
ART D-26 |Paula Grove \"My Condolences\" a sculptural 77 S 10,000 | S 10,000 | $ -
installation with audio storytelling
ART D-27 |The Dill CREATION AND PRESENTATION FOR 76 S 10,000 | S 40,800 | S -
ARTISTS
ART D-28 |Back Road Bourbon Black Road Bourbon Launch Plan 73 S 1,661 | S 5537 | S -
ART D-29 |Karen Ann Logan What's Alive in Hamilton 73 S 6,500 | $ 23,050 | S -
ART D-30 |Dave Cameron Established Artist Project 72 S 5,010 | $§ 16,700 | $ -
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ARTS

Awaiting submission of additional information

Ref No Organization Program-Event-Project Name Final 2020 Funded 2021 Funding Total Program 2021 Funding
Rating Request Budget Recommendation
ART D-31 |Hamilton Indie Theatre Project The Team by Michael Kras 71 S 5,000 | § 59,797 | S -
ART D-32 |Joseph Thomson Emerging Artist Project 71 S 5,000 | $ 19,398 | $ -
ART D-33 |Rabbit's Waterolour \"Life goes on~\" 71 S 4,035 | S 13,500 | $ -
ART D-34 |Bill King Hamilton: Weird and Wonderful 70 S 500 | S 1,850 | S -
ART D-35 |Joyce Grant and Nicola Winstanley Established Artist Project (Collaborative 69 S 5,000 | S 20,000 | S -
Literary Work)
ART D-36 |Babak Lakghomi Short Story Collection and Reading 66 S 3,600 | § 10,800 | $ -
Events
ART D-37 |DrinkWATER Productions THE ELEVATION EP 66 S 7,350 | $ 21,850 | $ -
ART D-38 |Sweet Jake Emerging Artist Project 65 S 1,821 | S 6,070 | S -
ART D-39 |Manfred Sitmann Art Creation and Presentation 63 S 5,000 | $ 15,770 | $ -
ART D-40 |The Bailiff Sings The Bailiff Sings - 2021 Traditional 60 S 6,000 | $ 20,000 | S -
Country Music
ART D-41 |ChangerMusic Changer Music - Enjoy Life Album - 2021 DNP S 4,740 | S 16,500 | $ -
ART D-42 |Aaron Hutchinson (Individual Artist) A Hutchie LP2 DNQ S 10,000 | S 47,232 | S -
ART D-43 |Arzoo Dance Theatre Self-Portraits with Amrita DNQ S 10,000 | S 35,000 | $ -
ART D-44 | Gritty City Theatre Company Established Artists DNQ S 10,000 | S 75,000 | S -
ART D-45 |Kayla Whitney Explorative Studio Practice and Public Art DNQ S 5,000 | § 21,930 | S -
ART D-46 |New Harlem Productions The First Stone DNQ S 10,000 | $ 232,750 | $ -
ART D-47 |Radha Sciara-Menon Ghost Train Riders Film DNQ S 10,000 | S 61,651 | S -
ART D-48 |The Women's Art Association of Established Semi-Professional DNQ S 6,000 | $ 20,450 | S -
Hamilton Organization
ART D-49 |William James Gillespie Emerging Artist Project DNQ S 3,000 | § 10,000 | $ -
S - S 329,322 | $ 1,650,768 | $ 96,295
TOTAL ARTS S 146,657 $ 757,284 S 3,833,855 S 355,803

! Awaiting submission of additional information
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COMMUNITIES, CULTURE & HERITAGE
Awaiting submission of additional information

Final 2021 Funding Total Program 2021 Funding
Ref No Organization Program-Event-Project Name Rating 2020 Funded Request Budget Recommendation
CCH Events and Established Activities
CCH A-1 SalsaSoul Productions Core Programs: Salsa on the Waterfront & 93 S 1,080 | S 3,459 | S 11,530 | $ 3,459
SalsaSoul Sundays
CCH A-2 The Rotary Club of Dundas Dundas Rotary Canada Day Celebrations 92 S - S 1,000 | $ 5,000 | S 790
and Pancake Breakfast
CCH A-3 Asociacion Fraternidad Hispana 2021 Hispanic/Latin American Heritage 88 S 3,000 | $ 3,500 | S 12,820 | $ 3,000
(Fraternity Hispanic Association) Month
CCH A-4 Winona Peach Festival Winona Peach Festival - Communities, 87 S 17,013 | $ 97,000 | S 337,800 | $ 86,700
Culture & Heritage Program
CCH A-5 Ancaster Heritage Days An Ancaster Village Christmas 2021 86 S - S 2,115 | $ 7,050 | S 1,995
CCH A-6 Zula Music & Arts Collective Hamilton 2021 Something Else! Festival 84 S 10,200 | $ 28,000 | $ 117,600 | $ 10,200
CCH A-7 Ancaster Heritage Days Ancaster Heritage Days - Summer Event 82 S - S 16,440 | S 54,800 | S 16,440
2021
CCH A-8 Musicata - Hamilton's Voices Concert Series 82 S 3,000 | $ 3,000 | S 17,454 | S 3,000
CCH A-9 Downtown Dundas Business Concert Series 81 S 1,055 | S 34,545 | § 115,150 | S 28,386
Improvement Area
CCH A-10 Durand Neighbourhood Association |Durand Neighbourhood Association 81 S - S 1,378 | $ 4,714 | S 1,378
Inc. Community Events
CCH A-11 Comunita Racalmutese Maria SS Del |Racalmutese Festival Maria Del Monte 79 S - S 12,488 | S 99,802 | S 9,845
Monte Inc.
CCH A-12 Hamilton Arts & Letters magazine HAL Presents 79 S 7,429 | S 9,000 | $§ 38,600 | S 7,429
CCH A-13 Rotary Club of Hamilton AM Imagine in the Park children's arts festival 77 S 295 | § 6,000 | S 29,250 | $ 5,100
CCH A-14 Barton Village Business Improvement |Barton Village Festival 76 S 1,272 | S 16,250 | S 67,130 | $ 3,433
Area
CCH A-15 Bet Nahrain Assyrian Heritage Centre |Assyrian Festival of Nusardil 76 - 5,101 17,004 | S 1,196
CCH A-16 CACTUS FESTIVAL OF DUNDAS Dundas Cactus Festival 76 S 17,978 43,914 147,548 | S 35,700
ONTARIO
CCH A-17 Dundas Historical Society Museum Exhibition Program 76 S 10,200 | $ 11,000 | $ 65,724 | S 10,200
CCH A-18 AFRO-CANADIAN CARIBBEAN Quilt Stories- Memories in Black 75 S 5,000 | S 20,000 | $ 2,500
ASSOCIATION OF HAMILTON &
DISTRICT INC.
CCH A-19 Downtown Hamilton BIA Gore Park Summer Promenade 74 S - S 13,500 | $ 59,762 | $ 9,762
CCH A-20 Hamilton and District Labour 2021 Labour Day Parade & Picnic 74 S 10,000 | $ 10,000 | $ 41,130 | $ 10,000
Council-CLC
CCH A-21 Concession Street BIA Concession Streetfest 2021 73 S 920 | S 10,000 | S 57,000 | $§ 8,000




Page 6 of 17

Appendix "C" to Item 10 of AF&A Report 21-010
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COMMUNITIES, CULTURE & HERITAGE
Awaiting submission of additional information

Final 2021 Funding Total Program 2021 Funding
Ref No Organization Program-Event-Project Name Rating 2020 Funded Request Budget Recommendation
CCH A-22 Ottawa Street Business Improvement |Sew Hungry 73 S - S 14,228 | $ 47,426 | S 7,892
Area
CCH A-23 Pride Hamilton Pride Hamilton 2021 73 S 2,250 | $ 50,000 | $ 150,000 | $ 7,650
CCH A-24 Dundas Valley Orchestra Concerts or Activities as Allowed under 72 S 5,000 | $ 5,000 | $ 21,780 | $ 5,000
Covid-19 Restrictions in 2021
CCH A-25 Hamilton Folk Arts Heritage Council  |It's Your Festival 72 S 12,554 | S 54,287 | $ 180,958 | S 54,287
CCH A-26 Dundas Cactus Parade Inc. Dundas Cactus Parade 71 S 501 | S 10,665 | S 35,550 | $ 10,649
CCH A-27 Lynden Canada Day Committee Lynden Canada Day Celebration 71 S - S 7,500 | S 39,200 | $ 7,500
CCH A-28 South Asian Heritage Association of  |South Asian Heritage Month (Ontario) 70 S 5196 | $ 5250 | $ 14,525 | $ 4,358
Hamilton & Region celebration -Spring Festival
CCH A-29 Concession Street BIA Concession Sidewalk Sounds 2021 67 S 2,235 | S 7,497 | S 24,990 | $ 4,000
CCH A-30 Oh Canada Rotary Ribfest Waterdown's Oh Canada Rotary Ribfest 67 S - S 25,000 | $§ 97,100 | S 2,500
CCH A-31 Sinfonia Ancaster (part of Ancaster Sinfonia Ancaster 67 S 3,861 | $ 10,720 | S 35,735 | § 8,231
Society for the Performing Arts)
CCH A-32 Dundas Historical Society Museum Discover Your Historical Dundas 66 S 5,100 | $ 5,500 | $ 18,925 | $ 5,100
CCH A-33 Stoney Creek Santa Claus Parade 2021 Stoney Creek Santa Claus Parade 66 S - S 3,500 | S 23,000 | $ 2,155
CCH A-34 FESTITALIA CORPORATION Festitalia 2021 64 S 18,750 | $ 22,500 | $§ 131,700 | $ 18,750
CCH A-35 Chorus Hamilton Chorus Hamilton 2020-2021 Season 63 S - S 5,000 | S 25,000 | $§ 5,000
CCH A-36 The Living Rock Ministries Arts of August 63 S 5,000 | $ 5,000 | S 25,006 | $§ 5,000
CCH A-37 Stoney Creek BIA Stoney Creek Saturdays in the Creek - 60 S 3,000 | $ 5,000 | $ 43,692 | S 3,000
Strawberry, Pumpkin and Jazz Fests
CCH A-38 Binbrook Parade Committee Binbrook Santa Claus Parade 60 S - S 5,000 | S 23,301 | $ 2,500
CCH A-39 The Children's International Learning |Festivals of Light 59 S 23,500 | $§ 79,310 | $ -
Centre (Hamilton)
CCH A-40 West Village BIA Westdale LIVE! 58 S - S 10,000 | S 41,960 | $ -
CCH A-41 CAMEROONIAN ASSOCIATION IN Spotlighting Cameroonian Culture in TBD | S - S 7,000 | $ 16,700 | $ 3,000
HAMILTON * Hamilton
CCH A-42 Locke Street BIA Sundays on Locke - Locke Street Festival 56 S 834 | S 13,000 | S 43,425 | S -
CCH A-43 India Canada Society * Gandhi Peace Festival TBD S 4,140 | $ 5310 | S 17,700 | $ 4,140
CCH A-44 Polish Symfonia Choir * Festival of Friends, Multicultural Concertat| TBD |$ 4,038 | $ 4,620 | S 15,400 | $ 4,038
Gage Park Hamilton #1
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COMMUNITIES, CULTURE & HERITAGE
Awaiting submission of additional information

Final 2021 Funding Total Program 2021 Funding
Ref No Organization Program-Event-Project Name Rating 2020 Funded Request Budget Recommendation
CCH A-45 Hamilton Waterfront Trust* Waterfront Tours - Hamilton Waterfront TBD | S 5,000 | $ 30,435 | $ 101,450 | $ 5,000
Trolley / Hamiltonian Sightseeing Tour
CCH A-46 Canadian Warplane Heritage Remembrance Day Ceremony 2021 54 S 17,350 | $ 31,500 | $ -
CCH A-47 Flamborough Santa Claus Parade * Flamborough Santa Claus Parade TBD |$ - S 15,000 | $ 60,444 | S 15,000
CCH A-48 Hamilton Santa Claus Parade The Hamilton Santa Claus Parade TBD | S 11,908 | $ 55,000 | S 112,360 | S 46,231
Committee?
$ 172,808 | $ 755,552 | $ 2,785,005 S 489,993
CCH - New Projects
CCH B-1 Hamilton Indie Theatre Project Hamilton indie theatre presenting series 96 S 29,934 | $ 126,831 | S 22,451
CCH B-2 Zula Music & Arts Collective Hamilton |2021 Something Else! Composite Arts 92 S 8,621 | S 28,000 | $ 94,000 | S 21,000
Series: Watch it Burn!
CCH B-3 Barton Village Business Improvement |Barton Connects 90 S 16,170 | S 57,020 | S 12,128
Area
CCH B-4 The Linden Project The Linden Project presents: Synesthesia 88 S 1,000 | S 3631 S 750
CCH B-5 Canadian Society of Contemporary Community; new projects 78 S 2,000  $ 6,400 | $ 1,000
Iron Arts
CCH B-6 The Friends of the Aviary Word with Birds 76 S 1,500 | S 5187 | S 750
CCH B-7 Downtown Dundas Business Dickens of a Christmas 73 S - S 22,114 | $ 96,150 | S 11,057
Improvement Area
CCH B-8 RAFIKI KARIBUNI - Afro Fest Culture 56 S 5,000 | $ 16,740 | S -
CCH B-9 The Children's International Learning |IRL-In Real Life 56 S 41,670 | S 141,000 | $ -
Centre (Hamilton)
CCH B-10 COLOMBIAN REFUGEES ASSOCIATION |HAMILTON LATIN-AMERICAN FESTIVAL 54 S 35,500 | $ 202,100 | $ -
S 8,621 | $ 182,888 | $ 749,059 | $ 69,135
CCH - Capacity Building for Cultural Organizations
CCHC-1 Musicata - Hamilton's Voices Concert Series Recording Sessions 81 S 5,000 | 24,454 | § 3,750
CCHC-2 Give Proof to Our Youth Give Proof to Our Youth 31 S 500 | $ 800 | S -
S 5,500 $ 25,254 | $ 3,750
TOTAL COMMUNITIES, CULTURE & HERTITAGE $ 181,429 S 943,940 $ 3,559,318 $ 562,878
! Awaiting submission of additional information
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2021 City Enrichment Fund
COMMUNITIES, CULTURE & HERITAGE
Awaiting submission of additional information

2 Funding recommended as per Council approved amount
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COMMUNITY SERVICES
Awaiting submission of additional information

Total
Final 2020 2021 Funding  Program 2021 Funding
Ref No Organization Program-Event-Project Name Rating Funded Request Budget Recommendation
CS No One is Hungry or Without Shelter
CSA-1 Mission Services of Hamilton The Good Food Centre 100 29,269 48,421 642,306 29,269
CS A-2 YWCA Hamilton Transitional Living 97 22,419 23,092 982,756 22,419
CSA-3 Good Shepherd Centre Hamilton Marketplace 94 79,473 81,857 1,097,100 79,473
CS A-4 Neighbour to Neighbour Centre Food Bank 91 30,754 32,291 221,217 30,754
Housing Help Centre - Hamilton &
CS A-5 Area Housing Stabilization 86 67,000 67,000 556,000 67,000
Launch New Affordable Housing Community at
CS A-6 Indwell McQuesten Lofts 86 68,101 75,000 412,950 56,250
CS A-7 Good Shepherd Centre Hamilton Community Hot Meals 85 37,507 38,632 868,275 37,507
CSA-8 Neighbour to Neighbour Centre Home Delivery Program 85 17,669 18,502 72,130 17,669
Governing Council of Salvation Army
CS A-9 Canada The Salvation Army Food Bank Program 80 23,627 65,000 937,399 23,627
THE SALVATION ARMY HAMILTON
CSA-10 |BOOTH CENTRE Soup Van Ministry Program 65 26,590 30,000 163,148 26,590
402,409 479,795 5,953,281 390,558
CS Everyone Feels Safe
Sexual Assault Centre (Hamilton and
CSB-1 Area) Crisis Support 97 15,547 16,247 160,812 15,547
Sexual Assault Centre (Hamilton and
CS B-2 Area) Abuse Prevention 95 6,696 6,997 131,694 6,696
Sexual Assault Centre (Hamilton and
CSB-3 Area) Counselling and Advocacy 94 20,558 21,483 248,555 20,558
Sexual Assault Centre (Hamilton and
CSB-4 Area) Diverse Communities Outreach 94 12,190 12,738 151,197 12,190
CS B-5 Interval House of Hamilton Peer Support and Counselling 83 47,954 50,351 307,097 47,954
CS B-6 YWCA Hamilton Phoenix Place VAW Residential Program 83 15,000 15,000 174,336 15,000
CS B-7 Good Shepherd Centre Hamilton 2nd Stage Housing 80 59,619 61,408 741,387 59,619
Community Outreach, Counselling, Advocacy
CS B-8 Interval House of Hamilton and Telephone Crisis 77 25,240 26,502 960,806 25,240
Thrive Child and Youth Trauma
CS B-9 Services Child and Youth Trauma Services (CYTS) 77 87,781 91,493 391,862 87,781
290,585 302,219 3,267,746 290,585

CS Every Child and Family Thrives
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Total
Final 2020 2021 Funding  Program 2021 Funding
Ref No Organization Program-Event-Project Name Rating Funded Request Budget Recommendation
CSC1 Immigrants Working Centre IWC Childcare Program 96 24,456 25,679 878,974 24,456
CSC-2 Wesley Urban Ministries Wesley Children and Family Programs 95 44,749 44,750 219,200 44,749
CSC-3 Elliott Heights Baptist Church Larch After School Program 85 5,202 20,000 121,481 5,202
Big Brothers Big Sisters of Halton and
CSC-4 Hamilton Matching Programs 82 24,480 25,000 866,446 24,480
CSC-5 The Living Rock Ministries Wellness Works 81 33,428 40,000 136,653 33,428
Big Brothers Big Sisters of Halton and
CSC-6 Hamilton Group Mentoring Programs for Girls 78 23,548 25,000 83,450 23,548
Big Brothers Big Sisters of Halton and
CS C-7 Hamilton Group Mentoring Programs for Boys 78 23,086 25,000 83,530 23,086
CSC-8 Boys and Girls Clubs of Hamilton Community Outreach Program 78 39,846 40,000 135,019 39,846
Hamilton East Kiwanis Boys and Girls
CSC9 Club Parent Education Outreach 78 51,664 52,000 175,000 51,664
270,459 297,429 2,699,753 270,459
CS No Youth is Left Behind
CS D-1 AY/Alternatives for Youth Hamilton  |AY Outreach 84 26,874 28,218 148,761 26,874
CS D-2 Wesley Urban Ministries Wesley Youth Housing 82 41,482 41,483 557,527 41,482
CSD-3 AY/Alternatives for Youth Hamilton |Street Involved Outreach 81 41,438 43,510 181,438 41,438
CSD-4 Dundas Youth Chaplaincy Routes Youth Centre 79 10,716 10,716 173,380 10,716
CS D-5 The Living Rock Ministries It's a New Day Breakfast Program 77 15,660 30,000 129,101 15,660
CS D-6 The Living Rock Ministries Evening Program Oasis Coffee House 73 15,801 30,000 141,130 15,801
151,971 183,927 1,331,337 151,971
CS Everyone Can Age in Place
CSE-1 Banyan Community Services Inc. Grocer-Ease 98 19,528 19,600 284,185 19,528
CSE-2 Ancaster Community Services Meals on Wheels 95 5,412 5,683 103,126 5,412
CSE-3 Ancaster Community Services Frozen Meals Program 94 6,079 6,383 66,288 6,079
CSE-4 Ancaster Community Services Assisted Volunteer Driving Program 91 9,605 9,500 39,480 9,500
CSE-5 Glanbrook Community Services (GCS) |[Community Supports Program 90 11,326 11,326 113,506 11,326
Victorian Order of Nurses for Canada-
CSE-6 Ontario Branch Meals on Wheels 90 57,989 57,989 1,242,497 57,989
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Total
Final 2020 2021 Funding  Program 2021 Funding
Ref No Organization Program-Event-Project Name Rating Funded Request Budget Recommendation
CS E-7 Glanbrook Community Services (GCS) |Meal Support Program 89 23,962 23,962 244,334 23,962
CSE-8 Flamborough Connects Seniors Support 88 3,515 3,515 11,744 3,515
CSE-9 Glanbrook Community Services (GCS) |Health & Fitness Program 88 16,574 16,514 79,608 16,514
Victorian Order of Nurses for Canada-
CSE-10 |Ontario Branch Adult Day Program 88 29,823 29,823 838,396 29,823
CSE-11 |St. Joseph's Villa A.C.T.I.V.E at the Villa Adult Day Program 86 20,808 20,808 871,990 20,808
CSE-12 |Glanbrook Community Services (GCS) |Volunteer Assisted Transportation 84 12,993 12,993 60,103 12,993
Victorian Order of Nurses for Canada-
CSE-13 |Ontario Branch Volunteer Visiting/Teletouch 84 53,235 53,235 472,764 53,235
CSE-14 |Wesley Urban Ministries Seniors Outreach Program 83 18,999 33,850 112,850 18,999
CS E-15 Dundas Community Services Services for Seniors 80 45,016 45,917 328,393 45,016
CSE-16 |Good Shepherd Centre Hamilton SAM Adult Day Program 79 70,319 72,429 742,613 70,319
The Salvation Army Mountberry Adult| The Salvation Army Mountberry Adult Day
CSE-17 |Day Services Program 68 6,200 6,300 461,771 6,200
CSE-18 |Shalom Village Goldie's Place Adult Day Program 67 24,088 24,088 382,000 24,088
CSE-19 |Catholic Family Services of Hamilton |Senior Intensive Case Management 65 12,003 38,000 863,419 12,003
Boys and Girls Clubs of Hamilton Adult Day
CSE-20 |Boys and Girls Clubs of Hamilton Program (ADP) 65 13,000 13,000 274,396 13,000
460,474 504,915 7,593,463 460,308
CS Community Capacity Grows
CSF-1 Adult Basic Education Association Lifelong Learning Opportunities and Pathways 99 8,670 9,000 87,840 8,670
CSF-2 Ancaster Community Services Community Outreach 93 36,711 38,547 208,323 36,711
CSF-3 Ancaster Community Services Youth Empowerment Program 88 14,303 15,018 93,059 15,018
CSF-4 Flamborough Connects Outreach Services Program 87 49,353 49,403 161,205 38,792
CSF-5 Hamilton Literacy Council Literacy and Basic Skills for Adults 84 6,000 6,000 304,203 6,000
CSF-6 Neighbour to Neighbour Centre Middle East Outreach 83 2,874 3,000 23,023 2,874
CSF-7 Dundas Community Services Community Outreach 81 11,316 11,542 38,500 11,316
Social Planning and Research Council |Community based research, planning and
CS F-8 of Hamilton community development 80 44,529 46,755 397,145 44,529
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St. John Ambulance - Hamilton
CSF-9 Branch Medical First Responder Program 80 6,213 9,600 52,500 6,213
Elizabeth Fry Society Southern
CSF-10 |Ontario Region Court Support/Reintegration Program 67 11,373 15,000 60,000 11,373
CSF-11 |Rotary Club of Hamilton Rotary Literacy in Action Program 65 7,362 25,000 169,640 7,362
Enhancing civic connections among low-
CSF-12 |Hamilton ACORN income tenants in Hamilton 79 20,000 69,792
CSF-13 |The HUB - Rest & Hygiene Center The \"HUB\" Rest & Hygiene Center 65 35,000 116,000
Hamilton Highrise
CS F-14  |(Hamiltonhighrise.ca) Community capacity grows 45 8,000 27,050 -
198,704 291,865 1,808,280 188,858
CS Everyone Has Someone to Talk to
Canadian Mental Health Association, |The Evening Social Recreation Rehabilitation
CSG-1 Hamilton Program 87 25,454 25,455 165,834 25,454
CS G-2 Dundas Community Services Counselling & Referral 86 7,600 7,752 25,923 7,600
CSG-3 Catholic Family Services of Hamilton |Individual & Family Counselling 69 40,699 90,363 275,879 40,699
73,753 123,570 467,636 73,753
CS Emerging Needs and Program Innovation
IWC Employment Services - Transitions to
CS H-1 Immigrants Working Centre Work for Refugee Claimants 100 22,484 35,365 393,162 26,524
CS H-2 Welcome Inn Community Centre Food Access Program 100 15,750 22,000 104,441 16,500
CS H-3 City Kidz Ministry CityKidz Cares 2021 99 - 25,000 279,900 18,750
CSH-4 Mission Services of Hamilton Willow's Place 97 26,250 35,000 438,091 26,250
CS H-5 Food4Kids Hamilton Weekends without Hunger 96 30,000 50,000 1,100,000 37,500
CS H-6 Mission Services of Hamilton Youth Afterschool Meal Program 96 - 33,222 166,760 24,917
Parent Education, Support and Skill
CS H-7 AY/Alternatives for Youth Hamilton Development Program 95 18,162 73,181 13,622
Information and Peer Support for Cancer
CS H-8 Wellwood Patients and Families/Caregivers 95 20,475 27,300 213,600 20,475
Dr. Bob Kemp Hospice Foundation Supports-for children and families with life
CS H-9 Inc. limiting illness, end of life and bereavement 92 37,500 183,245 28,125
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Men's Addiction & Trauma Education (MATE)
CSH-10 |Wayside House of Hamilton Program 92 30,000 139,850 22,500
CSH-11 |Wesley Urban Ministries Wesley Day Centre 90 160,000 540,588 70,104
CS H-12 |Mealshare Aid Foundation Helping End Youth Hunger in Hamilton 88 17,000 57,800 12,750
Bringing Hands-On Virtual STEM Enrichment to
CS H-13 |Scientists in School Low-Income Communities in Hamilton 88 13,000 44,940 9,750
CS H-14 |St. Matthew's House Seniors in Kitchens (SinKs) and SinKs To Go 88 40,000 617,000 30,000
CS H-15 |Sisters in Sync 'Recovering You' Program 87 28,000 93,000 21,000
Thrive Child and Youth Trauma
CS H-16 |Services OASIS 84 41,700 170,430 30,222
CS H-17 |Catholic Family Services of Hamilton |Credit Counselling 81 48,500 186,500
Micah House Refugee Reception
CS H-18 |Services Inc. Refugee Hearing Program - Hamilton 81 13,267 44,224
CSH-19 |COLOMBIAN REFUGEES ASSOCIATION |Refugee Claimant Settlement Service 78 95,500 402,100
CS H-20 |Healthy Youth Network What's Your Path 78 27,600 92,600
CSH-21 |Mishka Social Serives Community Counselling & Psychotherapy 73 75,800 252,680
Social Planning and Research Council |Financial Empowerment and Problem Solving
CS H-22 |of Hamilton Program 73 75,000 250,000
CS H-23  |Boys and Girls Clubs of Hamilton McQueston Boys and Girls Club 60 24,400 82,500
Canadian National Institute for the Peer Programming for Hamiltonians Living with
CSH-24 |Blind Sight Loss 60 7,000 50,980
114,959 980,316 5,977,572 408,988

TOTAL COMMUNITY SERVICES 1,963,315 3,164,036 29,099,068 2,235,481
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Ref No Organization Program-Event-Project Name Final 2020 Funded 2021 Funding Total Program 2021 Funding
Rating Request Budget Recommendation
ENV Capacity Building
ENV A-1 |Green Venture Enhanced Energy Capacity 87 S 10,503 | S 22,500 | S 75,000 | S 10,503
$ 10,5503 $ 22,500  $ 75,000 | $ 10,503
ENV Projects & Programs
ENVB-1 |Green Venture Nature Ninjas 93 S 4,500 | S 4,500 | $ 17,690 | $§ 4,500
ENV B-2  |Bay Area Restoration Council School and Volunteer Programming for 90 S 26,250 | $ 35,000 | $ 175,150 | S 26,250
Hamilton Harbour Restoration
ENV B-3 |Green Venture Catch the RAIN Hamilton 89 S 25,000 | S 29,500 | $ 189,550 | S 25,000
ENV B-4 |Environment Hamilton EH Climate Action Campaign - Building 87 S 9,660 | S 25,530 | $ 266,557 | S 9,660
Climate Resilience in Vulnerable
Neighbourhoods component
ENV B-5 |Sustainable Hamilton Burlington Development of a Water Management 87 S 20,805 | S 35,000 | $ 113,370 | S 20,805
Framework for Business Organizations
ENV B-6 |A Rocha Canada A Rocha Hamilton's Environmental 86 S 12,000 | S 35,000 | S 167,650 | $ 12,000
Education and Conservation Activities
ENV B-7 |Hamilton Naturalists' Club Biodiversity in Action at Home 85 S 8,010 | $ 7,800 | S 25,880 | S 7,764
ENV B-8 |Trees For Hamilton Trees for Hamilton 81 S 1,400 | $ 3,030 | S 39,580 | S 1,400
ENV B-9 |Beautiful Alleys Birge Street Parkette 59 S - S 5,550 | S 18,550 | S -
ENV B-10 |Repeat Champions Foundation Inc Repeat Champions Foundation Inc 51 S - S 5,000 | S 15,000 | S -
S 107,625 | S 185,910 | $ 1,028,977 | $ 107,379
TOTAL ENVIRONMENT $ 118,128 $ 208,410 S 1,103,977 $ 117,882
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Final 2021 Funding Total Program 2021 Funding
Ref No Organization Program-Event-Project Name Rating 2020 Funded Request Budget Recommendation
SAL - Long-Term Athlete Development
SAL A-1 Hamilton Ringette Association FUNdamentals 82 S 3,750 | $ 7,500 | $§ 26,725 | $ 5,625
SAL A-2 Flamborough Dundas Soccer Club FDSC Follows LTPD for Grassroots Soccer 82 S 3,980 | $ 7,500 | $ 35,500 | S 3,902
The Hamilton and District Soccer Hamilton Soccer - Grass Roots Soccer
SAL A-3 Association Program - Retention of Program Initiatives 78 S 7,500 | § 7,500 | § 65,000 | S 7,500
The Saltfleet Stoney Creek Soccer
SAL A-4 Club SSC - LTAD - Player Development Program 77 S 3,825 | $ 7,500 | $ 260,000 | $ 3,825
Croatian Sports and Community
Centre of Hamilton (Hamilton Improving longevity of successful soccer
SAL A-5 Croatia) program 63 S - S 12,000 | § 40,000 | S 3,500
S 19,055 | $ 42,000 | S 427,225 | $ 24,352
SAL - Sport Awareness
The Equestrian Association for the
SAL B-1 Disabled (T.E.A.D.) Communications/Marketing Person 91 S - S 7,500 | $ 51,605 | $ 5,625
Grass Roots - Leading the Training For The
SAL B-2 Saltfleet Stoney Creek Soccer Club Youth 86 S 5,355 | $ 7,500 | $ 350,000 | $ 5,355
Hamilton Soccer - Continued
The Hamilton and District Soccer Enhancement of the Match Official
SAL B-3 Association Mentorship Program 86 S 5,836 | S 7,500 | $ 36,000 | S 5,836
SAL B-4 National Cycle Centre Of Hamilton Marketing and Communications Support 85 S 9,149 | S 21,927 | S 5,625
SAL B-5 Flamborough Dundas Soccer Club Sport Awareness 85 S 7,491 | S 7,500 | $ 30,200 | S 7,491
$ 18682 $ 39,149 | § 489,732 | $ 29,932
SAL - Capacity Building
The Golden Horseshoe Track & Field |Golden Horseshoe Track & Field Council -
SAL C-1 Council Capacity Growth Program 99 S 2,295 | $ 3,500 | S 30,600 | S 2,295
SAL C-2 Flamborough Dundas Soccer Club FDSC Builds Capacity 83 S - S 7,500 | $ 25,000 | $ 7,500
The Saltfleet Stoney Creek Soccer
SAL C-3 Club SSC - Sports After COVID 77 S 2,500 | $ 15,000 | $ 1,250
$ 2,295 | $ 13,500 | $ 70,600 S 11,045
SAL - Sport Development / Inclusion
Everyone Skates: HCRD's Diversity, Equity
SAL D-1 Hammer City Roller Derby and Inclusion Plan 95 S 2,600 | $ 8,674 | S 1,950
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2021 City Enrichment Fund
SPORTS & ACTIVE LIFESTYLE
Awaiting submission of additional information

Final 2021 Funding Total Program 2021 Funding
Ref No Organization Program-Event-Project Name Rating 2020 Funded Request Budget Recommendation
Dragon Boat Sport Development and
SAL D-2 Knot A Breast Wellness Program 91 S 5,649 | $ 7,500 | § 26,655 | S 7,500
SAL D-3 Liberty For Youth Liberty and Justice Basketball Program 87 S 7,500 | $ 98,000 | $ 5,625
The Equestrian Association for the
SAL D-4 Disabled (T.E.A.D.) Outreach Program 87 S 7,500 | $ 47,155 | S 5,625
SAL D-5 Wesley Urban Ministries Wesley Youth Centre at Beasley 86 S 7,500 | § 7,500 | $ 27,500 | $ 7,500
SAL D-6 Binbrook Minor Baseball Association |Rally Cap Program 76 S - S 5,325 | S 17,750 | $ 5,325
SAL D-7 Boys and Girls Clubs of Hamilton Midnight Basketball 78 S 7,500 | § 7,500 | $ 72,500 | S 7,500
Jimmy Thompson Swimmer Participation
SAL D-8 Hamilton-Wentworth Aquatic Club  |Program 77 S 7,500 | $ 7,500 | $ 28,000 | S 7,500
SAL D-9 SportHamilton Communication Strategy Project 70 S 5,625 | $ 8,700 | $ 29,000 | $ 5,625
The Saltfleet Stoney Creek Soccer
SALD-10 |Club SSC - Special Needs & All Abilities Program 67 S - S 5,000 | $ 42,000 | S 2,500
Hamilton Cardinals Youth Summer Camps
SALD-11 |Hamilton Cardinals and Clinics 60 S - S 6,150 | $ 20,500 | S 3,075
$ 33,774 | $ 72,775 | $ 417,734 | $ 59,725
SAL - Accessibility
SAL E-1 Flamborough Dundas Soccer Club FDSC Special Soccer Program 89 S - S 7,500 | $ 25,500 | $ 6,900
SAL E-2 Royal Hamilton Yacht Club RHYC Able Sail 88 S - S 7,100 | $ 23,910 | $ 6,120
The Equestrian Association for the
SAL E-3 Disabled (T.E.A.D.) Subsidies 88 S 7,500 | $§ 7,440 | § 24,976 | $ 7,440
Healthy Active Vibrant Energetic Seniors
SAL E-4 Boys and Girls Clubs of Hamilton (HAVES) 71 S 6,810 | $ 7,500 | § 65,400 | S 7,500
$ 14,310 $ 29,540 | $ 139,786 @ $ 27,960
SAL - Active for Life
SAL F-1 Fit Active Beautiful Foundation FAB Girls 5K Challenge Program 95 S 7,500 | $§ 7,500 | $ 48,741 | S 7,500
Down Syndrome Association of
SAL F-2 Hamilton Activity Kit Project 93 S 2,556 | $ 8,520 | $ 1,917
SAL F-3 Boys and Girls Clubs of Hamilton Let's Get Moving 88 S 5,625 | $ 7,500 | $ 432,500 | $ 5,625
SAL F-4 Flamborough Dundas Soccer Club Soccer for Life 83 S 3,425 | S 7,500 | $§ 25,000 | S 5,625
Hamilton Hornets Rugby Football
SAL F-5 Club Rugby for newcomers and at-risk youth 83 S 5571 | S 7,500 | $§ 28,200 | S 5,571
SAL F-6 New Hope Community Bikes NHCB Youth Cycling Program 80 S 3,250 | $ 10,860 | $ 2,438
SAL F-7 Hamilton Basketball Association HBA 2020-21 Season 80 S 4,351 | S 7,500 | $ 95,719 | $ 4,266




Page 17 of 17

Appendix "C" to Item 10 of AF&A Report 21-010

2021 City Enrichment Fund
SPORTS & ACTIVE LIFESTYLE
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Final 2021 Funding Total Program 2021 Funding
Ref No Organization Program-Event-Project Name Rating 2020 Funded Request Budget Recommendation
SAL F-8 Hamilton Chinese Sports Association |Go to Play 80 S 2,283 | $ 3,998 | $ 13,325 | $ 2,283
SAL F-9 The Living Rock Ministries Rock-in-Action 80 S 4,000 | $ 8,000 | § 33,541 | S 4,058
SALF-10 |Hamilton Celtics Basketball Youth Basketball Project 78 S 6,000 | $ 20,953 | S 3,000

Expansion of Programs to Larger facility to

SALF-11 |National Cycle Centre Of Hamilton facilitate growth and COVID compliance 74 S 5,304 | $ 17,680 | $ 2,652
SALF-12  |Hamilton Bay Sailing Club Sports and Active Lifestyle-Active for Life 74 S 7,442 | S 7,500 | $ 42,600 | S 7,500
SAL F-13 COLOMBIAN REFUGEES ASSOCIATION |True soccer Kids 63 S 7,500 | $ 67,500 | S 3,750

SALF-14 |Hamilton Jewish Federation JFitness@home 55 S - S 2,010 | S 6,700 | S -
S 40,197 | S 83,618 | $ 851,839 | $ 56,185

SAL - Multi-Sport Hosting
Ontario Cycling Association

SAL G-1 Incorporated Paris Ancaster Bicycle Race 82 S - S 13,300 | $§ 180,000 | $ 12,546
SAL G-2 91st Highlanders Athletic Association |City Enrichment Fund 81 S - S 25,254 | S 84,150 Withdrew
S - S 38,554 | $ 264,150 | $ 12,546
TOTAL SPORT & ACTIVE LIFESTYLE $ 128,313 $ 319,136 $ 2,661,066 $ 221,745

! Awaiting submission of additional information

2 Funding recommended as per Council approved amount
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City Enrichment Fund - Payment Plan

Upon Council approval and the receipt of the signed City Enrichment Fund Agreement,
the following payment plan will apply:

$0 - $10,000 paid out 100% upon Council
Approval

$10,001 - $100,000 paid 80% on Council Approval;
20% released November 1,
2021

Over $100,000 paid monthly

City Enrichment Fund Agreements which are not completed and returned by November
1, 2021 will result in the grant being forfeited.

In the case where a successful grant applicant has outstanding arrears with the City of
Hamilton as of December 31, 2020, the grant will first be applied against the
outstanding arrears, with the remainder to be paid to the organization, in accordance
with the City Enrichment Fund payment plan.
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